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Corporate Information 2 7 & ¥}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

MON Chung Hung (Chief Executive Officer and Deputy Chairman)

LI Man Wai

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
MON Wai Ki, Vicky
MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin

LAU Chun Kay

MA Chun Hon, Richard

COMPANY SECRETARY
MOK Kin Kwan

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 2002-2006, 20th Floor

Greenfield Tower
Concordia Plaza

1 Science Museum Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
Stock Code on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited : 725
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SOLICITOR
U, LAl & LI

20th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER

OFFICE
The Bank of Bermuda Limited

6 Front Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER

OFFICE
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.equitynet.com.hk/0725
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Mission Statement R 5

Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the
high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service
to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business

demanding excellence in all of its operations.
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Corporate Profile £E

The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades
quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid wire, wire
harnesses and plastic resins. The Group’s primary markets are
America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan and Southeast
Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national producers of
electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group employs approximately
1,500 staff worldwide involved in management, sales and
marketing, shipping, procurement, financial and accounting,
research and development, production and manufacturing. The
Group considers its employees to be its most important asset
while its key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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Chairman’s Statement X [ERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to announce the audited consolidated financial results of
Perennial International Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December
2009.

The Group's turnover was HK$411,192,000 (2008:
HK$507,628,000). Profit for the year was HK$30,191,000
compared to HK$22,294,000 in 2008, up 35%. Earnings per share
were HK$0.152 (2008: HK$0.112).

2009 has been challenging for the Group, given the poor economic
conditions in major markets around the world. Although revenue
declined, our proven strategy in cashflow management, risk
management, cost control and efficiency enhancement enabled us

to improve our gross margin.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.04 per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.02
per share, the Group's total dividend for the year 2009 amount to
HK$0.06 per share (2008: HK$0.05 per share).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
26th April, 2010 to 29th April, 2010, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. Subject to the
approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 29th April, 2010, the final dividend will be paid on or before 11th
May, 2010 to shareholders whose names are registered in the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
29th April, 2010.

In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30p.m. on 23rd
April, 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement &%

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading
of quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and wires, wire

harnesses and plastic resins.

During the year, our sales in power cord and power cord sets,
cables and wires, wire harnesses and plastic resins accounted
for 54%, 10%, 34% and 2% of the Group's total revenue,
respectively.

Despite the drop in revenue, our profitability has sustained during
the year under review. This is primarily attributed to the successful
implementation of the “Lean Production” strategy which aims to
rationalize the internal operating process within each department
and between departments.

In addition, the Group has continued to adopt prudent strategy,
conduct regular audit on cost control, enhance production
efficiency and take defensive measures to pre-empt potential
accidents and risks.

In respect of raw material costs, the Group has adopted the
proven strategy of hedging with delivery to reduce costs which

results in solid growth in profit.

While the implementation of the People’s Republic of China’s
new labour law in early 2008 increased our costs, the Group has
reduced the surging pressure on labour costs by capitalizing on

semi-automation to realign manpower.
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Chairman’s Statement X [ERE

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The outburst of the Global Financial Tsunami has taken place for
over one year. Despite there are signals indicating that the global
economy has revived gradually, it will take some time for the full
recovery from the economic downturn. The Group will continue to
implement prudent strategy and take cautious steps to weather
challenges arising from the weak global economy in many mature
countries.

Our core strategy for 2010 is to create value for our customers.
We will continue to provide high quality products at competitive

price.

In addition to producing more environmentally-sound products, we
will continue to invest our resources in research and development
of environmentally-proof and green products in order to meet the
new environmental protection regulation adopted by the European
Union.

This year, in order to tap into the high potential market, the Group
plans to apply for the ISO 13485 certification which is dedicated to
Medical Devices — Quality Management Systems.

Currently, the United States of America is the Group’s most
major overseas market. We will expedite our expansion into
other overseas markets in the future, with an aim to develop new

revenue driver for the Group.

On the human resources front, we will continue to attract and
retain talents through the provision of competitive remuneration
package and employee recognition.

2010 will be another challenging year. But we believe if we remain
positive in enhancing efficiency, adding value to our products and
building closer partnership relationship with our customers, the
Group’s business will continue to achieve steady growth in profit.
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Chairman’s Statement &%

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights
and enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result,
we establish the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere

to the best practice.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Being a responsible corporate citizen is the Group's strong belief.
So we continue to participate in and support community activities
in both Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

VOTE OF THANKS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, my sincere thanks to our loyal
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous support
and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th March 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis & Bt R 207

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At the end of December 2009, the consolidated indebtedness
of the Group, including long-term borrowings of HK$2,056,000,
was HK$28,865,000. The borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$29,293,000.

At the end of December 2009, the Group's trade receivables
balance was HK$87,586,000, representing 21.3% of the year’s
turnover of HK$411,192,000. The Group adopted a stringent credit
policy to minimize credit risk.

The interest cover was 23.2 times as compared to 6.3 times in
2008.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31st December 2009, the consolidated shareholders’ equity

of the Group was HK$267,693,000, an increase of 13.2% over that
of the previous year. The debt to equity ratio, calculated by dividing
total liabilities to shareholders’ equity, was approximately 34.0%.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS

During the year under review, capital expenditures were
approximate to HK$2,790,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31st December 2009, the Group's banking facilities

amounting to approximately HK$27,186,000 were secured by legal
charges over certain leasehold land, land use rights, buildings, and
investment property of the Group with a total net book value of
HK$39,784,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 B ih R o7

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and the
Mainland China continued to be the Group's major markets,
accounting for approximately 43%, 31% and 15% of the Group’s
total sales respectively. The remaining 11% of sales were
generated from customers located in Other Asian Countries and

Europe.

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st December 2009, the Group employed approximately

1,500 full time management, administrative and production staff
worldwide. The Group follows market practice on remuneration
packages. Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined
by senior management annually depending on the employee’s
performance, experience and industry practice. The Group invests
in its human capital, In addition to on-job training, the Group adopts
policies of continuous professional training programs.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2009, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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Corporate Governance Report 2 E 4%

Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness.

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRACTICES
With effect from 1st January 2005, the Company has applied

the principles and complied with the requirements of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”),

The Directors confirm that the Company fully complies to the
Code Provisions, and adopts Recommended Best Practices as
defined in Appendix 14 of the Rules governing the Listing of

Securities appropriately when possible.

THE BOARD

The Board's primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity, due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring prudent
conduct of operations within laws and approved policies, ensuring
and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.
Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility for
the proper direction of the Company.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of nine (9) members whose details
are set out on pages 27 and 32. It meets quarterly and holds
specific meetings as and when they are deemed necessary.
The Board held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2009. A record of the directors’ attendance at Board
meetings is set out on page 23 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to Directors. The directors are
also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group's operational
facilities and meet with the management to gain a better
understanding of its business operations.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
also has access to independent professional advice where

appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce his independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of
the Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages
the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
implementing strategies, policies, and for conducting the Group's
businesses.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at
each annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-
election. Each Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. To enhance accountability, any further re-
appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has
served the Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate
resolution as passed by the shareholders.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
has acknowledgement receipt of a written confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of
his independence to the Company. The Company considers all its
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. The directors should prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The board's
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and reports to regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to

statutory requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them
having specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to
specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate,
to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters. Details of these

committees and their principal terms of reference are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its

current members included three (3) Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)
Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been revised
to meet the requirements set out in the Code (effective 23rd
March 2009).

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and any question
of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters relating
to the independence of the external auditor; meeting with the
external auditor to discuss the nature and scope of the audit,
and matters of concern when requested to do so by the external
auditor; reviewing the interim financial report and annual financial
statements before they are submitted to the Board; discussing
problems and reservations arising from the interim review and
final audit, and any other matters the external auditor may wish
to discuss, and reviewing the external auditor’s letter to the
management and the management’s response; reviewing the
internal audit programmes and ensuring co-ordination between
the internal audit team and external auditor, and ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; and considering any findings of major
investigations of internal control matters as delegated by the

Board or on its own initiative and management'’s response.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year, while at
least once a year it meets with the external auditor without
Executive Directors being present. The Audit Committee held
two (2) meetings during the year ended 31st December 2009. An
attendance record of its members at Audit Committee meetings
is set out on page 23 of this report.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
financial report and the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2009 and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal

control systems and made recommendations to the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members included three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)
Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group's remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages for directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes, and making recommendations to the Board on

remuneration of the directors and senior management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Remuneration Committee met two (2) times in the year of
2009. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the terms of the Executive Directors’
service contracts. An attendance record of its members at the
Remuneration Committee meetings is set out on page 23 of this
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members included three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)
Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so as
to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent.

The Nomination Committee met one time (1) in the year of
2009. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them
in nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that such
criteria should include the candidates’ professional background,
their financial and commercial experience and their past track
record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates who satisfy
the relevant criteria are then short- listed by the chairman of the
Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
subsequently meets to select the final candidates and submit its
recommendation to the Board for its final approval. An attendance
record of its members at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 23 of this report.

FHESE (&)
R-FRAEEAFUHEAEHBAAAE

#FoRgt SZ8iWm
ERENHMBER A TRITEENRR
EHETHITESRBEAONGR - ZEF
KEHEFMEESS R LB NERE
238 -

o HBRAKERRE=ZZBIUIIFNTEEN
—RIEMITESE - DHA

SRBE A ()
WMEIARELE
Bzt

REZBEZIZBARBAPRBAZE
BREN  UTHEXEFEEMEFSLHT
2% NRERAERAEBE AT BERL -

RIZZENFEAREZZEGHAEAM—KE
#oREL RZBNWmTREANRERRE
FREBEREREANEL  WRBELE

AIEBIEZREANEESS  MKEEH
MR KB EARBEM LA B E L
(A - 6 Ll BBIRENIREA
KREZESXRMERITEREALS
EXREZEE  RBEEZEGHITEREL
REANE UMESFRLEE AFEEg
ERE#E - ZEGKEBLRIRREESE
BB EHAAREE23E -

Annual Report 2009 —2ZhEEE 17




Corporate Governance Report it %%

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members included five (5) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
(Chief Executive Officer and Deputy Chairman)
Ms. LI Man Wai
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to
ensure compliance in every respect with the listing requirements
contained in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing transactions
entered into by the Company so as to ensure compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Company whether
of Hong Kong or elsewhere. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures
of the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year
ended 31st December 2009. An attendance record of its members
at the Compliance Committee meeting is set out on page 23 of

this report.

18  Perennial International Limited 1548 B AR A 7

A E

ZERF+—A=-+THHEAK
Vo HBIKEBEREZWNITES  — &3k
WITEBER=—ZBUIIENTES  DRlA

u||

BITEE

BIRESRLE
(TTBAB# R BIE/E)

FXHL LT

FIBRSEE

RERL L

HERRL

HEHTEE
BTzt (£E)

BUHBITEE
R S A
BRI
BHEELELE

ERZBEZIRBER)ERNARRME
MZEEEF - AREERENE LT RGIFTH
E@Fﬁﬁim%ﬁm C R BEARRZZHIE

C AEREN A BRI ERRA
ATZ*EE@P&WU&*EE o WEE - BEREER
ERSKEXBRUFE LTGRO ERKRK
L EA AP MR BEAREARAREZ

o

R i H

b
mg
%



Corporate Governance Report {t 2 &8 &

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular,
consider the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. Areas for improvement
have been identified and appropriate measures taken so as to
provide assurance that key business and operational risks are

identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

(@) A comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial

information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  Management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities are

documented and communicated;

(c) System and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that
may have an impact on the Group; and
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INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

(d) Internal Audit Team performs reviews of the risks and
key controls to provide reasonable assurance to the
management and the Audit Committee that risks and
controls have been adequately addressed.

The function of the Internal Audit Team is mainly responsible
for monitoring the internal control system of the Group. The
Internal Audit Team covers financial controls, business operations,
compliance and risk management. Reports are submitted to the
Audit Committee on a regular basis.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appoin
tment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor subject to
endorsement by the Board and final approval and authorization
by shareholders of the Company in general meeting. The Audit
Committee assesses the external auditor, taking into account
factors such as the performance and quality of the audit and the
objectivity and independence of auditor. The existing auditor of the
Company is PricewaterhouseCoopers who was first appointed in
1997.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The Group was charged HK$1,280,000 and HK$342,000 by

PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2009.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In preparing the financial statements, the Board has
adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong
and complied with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting

policies have also been used and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 and 47 of this

annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, they had complied with the required
standards of the said code during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to
the Company’s bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
Shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the
Chairmen, any member from the respective committees, must
attend the annual general meetings of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. External auditor shall also be invited to
attend the Company's annual general meetings and is available
to assist the Directors in addresing queries from shareholders
relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content
of their auditor report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand

its business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses,
financial information and particulars of Directors are posted.
The Company’s publications, including press releases,
announcements, annual and interim reports, shareholders
circulars are being made available on this website (http://www.
equitynet.com.hk/0725)
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, EERNEST ERZEES - FM
AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION ZEE REZEEREEZES
COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE Z HERC &

AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Board Committee = Committee = Committee = Committee

Meetings  Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Exg EnzZeg ¥Mz88 REEEE EEZEg

23 23 a3 f ] 23

Total number of meetings held ~ REZ-ZTAF+-A

during the year ended 31st =t BLEFEREST

December 2009 = 4 2 2 1 1
Number of meetings attended: B GHINH :
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung ARERAE 4 NANEA NADER  NATEA 1
(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy  (77E#E# REIE/E)

Chairman)
Ms. LI Man Wai EXHEL 4 NATER NATRER  NATER 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco BB EE 4 NATER NATER  NATER 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky REBRLLT 3 NATEA N/A N/A 0
Ms. MON Tiffany mERZT 2 NATER NATER  NATER 1
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BEEaL 4 2 2 1 1
(Chairman) ()

Independent Non-Executive BIYFHITES

Directors
Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin BEALAE 4 2 2 1 1
Mr. LAU Chun Kay ARBSAE 4 2 2 1 1
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard BEELE 2 2 2 1 1
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and

trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the

EXSENREETHENBE_TTNF
TZA=Z+T—ALEFEZEBRMBRE

REEERREFHE D 25

ARBZEBEBRIREER - ENERQA
TERERENEEERNERERES -
B AR B HEN I RERMEI2 -

subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

AEBAFRZIBWRE D 2 EBH DR
BRI EHRMTES

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY hFEMBHE
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the TERETMAEETBERFACELE - BE
last five financial years is set out below: ReEmeE -
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—EERFE ZE2ERF ZEEEF ZETN\F ZBThE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FTET TR THET
Revenue X 375,383 439,352 470,496 507,628 411,192
Profit for the year gl 25,408 29,460 24,398 22,294 30,191
Total assets BEE 280,966 337,013 392,971 364,065 358,594
Total liabilities BAE (115,755) (149,671) (180,285) (127,654) (90,901)
Total equity ety 165,211 187,342 212,686 236,411 267,693
ANALYSIS OF THE GROUP’S PERFORMANCE EEBEZEBRRDN
An analysis of the Group's performance is shown in the REBZEBRASMBANECEEFIEZ
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 9. FRBER -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers, classified by individual

entity, are as follows:

TEEFRHER
AEENAREZ X BREBERES LA

AEBDBZERBIEEAILMT

Purchases REE
— the largest supplier —BAHER
- five largest suppliers combined — A ARHER
Sales HE
— the largest customer —BAEP
- five largest customers combined —hREP

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or

customers noted above.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

income statement account on page 48.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.02 per
ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$3,980,000 which was
paid on 9th September 2009.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.04 per ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$7,960,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 21 to

the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 53 and note 22 to the financial statements.

22.4%
58.5%

8.3%
31.7%

Ef REIBBEATREAIRR(GEEE
EFTAMBERARNRE 5% A FRARE R 2 IRER)
WER Lz TEHERATPHEAER

3 -

RERDE
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HRPA -
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3,980,000 Bt WRAZZEZNFALAN
HIRE -
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4 4£7,960,000 # 7T ©
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2009, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to HK$108,951,000.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$2,403,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of the

annual report.
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ANALYSIS OF BANK LOANS AND OTHER RITERRHEMEES M
BORROWINGS
The Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st AEER-_ZEZNF+A=+—HZIRTT
December 2009 are repayable over the following periods: BEREEMEEERTYIAIRERE -
Finance Trust
Bank lease receipt
loans obligation loans Total
1T HEe g
BX HAEE X HE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TR TR TR

On demand or not exceeding one year BIHER S —FRER 252 2,227 24,330 26,809
More than one year but not exceeding —F LA HETBBMRE - 2,056 - 2,056
two years
More than two years but not exceeding WEL EETBARF - - - -
five years
More than five years HENUE - - - -
252 4,283 24,330 28,865
DIRECTORS B=E

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report NAEFEENERARE Y BEFEZEEZNT -
were:

Executive Directors HITES

MON Chung Hung (Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman) TR (7TBABE R S FE )
LI Man Wai 3§17

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco ElElnd

MON Wai Ki, Vicky HIEE

MON Tiffany wEE

Non-Executive Director FHTES

KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman) ()

Annual Report 2000 —EZhEEE 27




Directors’ Report EE %

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin

LAU Chun Kay

MA Chun Hon, Richard

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Ms. MON Tiffany and Mr. LAU Chun Kay
will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the Company's Bye-
laws at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, all offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent
non-executive director is not more than 3 years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the directors and senior management

of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 59, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director and a member of the compliance committee of the
Company. Mr. Mon has over 30 years of experience in the electric
cable and wire industry. He is responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and policy making. Mr. Mon is a director of
Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. He is also the husband of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise and the
father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Li Man Wai, FCCA, FCPA, aged 55, is an Executive Director
and a member of the compliance committee of the Company. Ms.
Li is a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the United Kingdom and a Fellow Member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
joined the Group in 2001 and has over 34 years of experience
as a senior executive in finance, accounting and administration
of manufacturing, trading and servicing industries in Asia
particularly Mainland China. She is also experienced in sales and
marketing. She is mainly responsible for the Group’s finance and
administration.

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 50, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu has over 20 years of experience in the
electric cable and wire industry. Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director
of the Group and is responsible for sales of the Group’s products
and product development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 35, is an Executive Director and
a member of the compliance committee of the Company. She
graduated from the Central Queensland University in Australia
with a Bachelor of Communications degree. She joined the
Group in 2004. As the Marketing Executive, she participates in
developing marketing strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon
Chung Hung, and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of
Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 29, is an Executive Director and a member
of the compliance committee of the Company. She holds a
bachelor’'s double major degree in Economics and Management
from the University of Sydney, Australia. She joined the Group
in 2002. As the Marketing Communications Manager she
coordinates marketing strategies and is also responsible for the
computer department. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung
Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the younger sister of Ms.
Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 58, is the Chairman, a Non-Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a
member of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of
the Company. Ms. Koo is a director of Spector Holdings Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. She is also the wife
of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the mother of Ms Mon Wai Ki, Vicky
and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin, aged 47, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Company. He
joined the Group in September 2008. He was an independent
non-executive director of the Company for the period from 1
April 2003 to 31 December 2005. He has been a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong for over 10 years and holds bachelor’s
degree of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong; bachelor’s degree of Laws from the Manchester
Metropolitan University, United Kingdom; Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong; bachelor’s degree
of Laws, master’s degree of Laws and doctorate degree of
Laws from Peking University, China. He has been admitted as
a solicitor in England and Wales and Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is
an Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; a Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; an
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators; an Associate Member of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong; a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors;
and a Member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Cheng
has been appointed to serve on various Government boards and
committees, including Equal Opportunities Commission; Appeal
Panel (Housing); Transport Tribunal; The Board of Management
of The Chinese Permanent Cemeteries; Elite Sports Committee;

Betting and Lotteries Commission; Public Affairs Forum.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, aged 61, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees and a member of the compliance
committee of the Company. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau
is a registered professional engineer and holds a master’s degree
in business administration and a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life
President of the Hong Kong Electrical Contractors Association,
and a past President and Advisor of The Federation of Asian and
Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He is also a member
of the Electrical Safety Advisory Committee, and is currently the
Executive Secretary of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors. He has over 39 years of experience in
management and engineering.

Mr. Ma Chun Hon Richard, aged 53, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Company. He
joined the Group in February 2006. Mr. Ma has been practicing as
a Public Accountant in Australia since 1988. He holds a bachelor
degree of Commerce from University of New South Wales major
in Accounting. Mr. Ma is an Member of the Australian Certified
Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of the Taxation Institute
of Australia.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Senior Management

Ms. Wong Wai Ping, aged 58, is the Group’s General Manager and
is responsible for sales and marketing activities. She joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 35 years of experience in the electric
cable and wire industry and electronics and communications

industry.

Mr. Li Ho Cheong, aged 57, is the Marketing Manager of the
Group and is responsible for marketing the Group’s products and
developing the overseas markets. He joined the Group in 1997
and has over 30 years of experience in the electric cable and wire
industry.

Mr. Mok Kin Kwan, FCCA, HKICPA, aged 39, is the Group Finance
Manager and Company Secretary and is responsible for finance
functions and the Company Secretary work. He joined the Group
in 2007, holds a Master’s degree in Finance and has over 14 years

of experience in accounting and auditing.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

On 1st January 2008, Mr. MON Chung Hung entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending
on 31st December 2010. Either party may at any time during the
term terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3
months prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum
equivalent to 3 monthly instalments of salary. However, the
contract should be deemed to have been renewed automatically
for three consecutive year period unless notice of non-renewal is
served by either party to the other at least 3 months prior to the
end of the term.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

On 1st January 2008, Ms. Li Man Wai entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st
December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed
to have been renewed automatically for three consecutive year
period under the same terms and conditions of the existing
contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to

the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.

On 4th November 2003, Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 4 years ending
on 31st December 2007. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco may at any time
during the term terminate the contract by giving the Company not
less than 6 months prior notice or payment in lieu in the years of
2004 and 2005, and 3 months prior notice or payment in lieu for
the years of 2006 and 2007. However, the Company is entitled to
terminate the contract at any time of the term by serving not less
than 3 months prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of
a sum equivalent to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract
should be deemed to have been renewed automatically for one
consecutive year period under the same terms and conditions of
the existing contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other as least 2 months prior to the end of the
term. On 1st January 2008 and 2009, the service contract of Mr.
Siu was renewed automatically for one consecutive year period
under the same terms and conditions
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

On 1st January 2008, Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on
31st December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed
to have been renewed automatically for three consecutive year
period under the same terms and conditions of the existing
contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to

the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.

On 1st January 2008, Ms. Mon Tiffany entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st
December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed
to have been renewed automatically for three consecutive year
period under the same terms and conditions of the existing
contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to
the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.

Non-Executive Director

On 1st January 2008, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on
31st December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed
to have been renewed automatically for three consecutive year
period under the same terms and conditions of the existing
contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to
the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

On 10th September 2008, Mr. Cheng Kwok Kit, Edwin entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of 2 years nine
months and twenty days ending on 31st December 2010. Either
party may at any time during the term terminate the contract by
giving the other not less than 2 months prior notice. The contract
should be deemed to have been renewed automatically for one
consecutive year period under the same terms and conditions of
the existing contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other at least 2 months prior to the end of the

term.

On 1st January 2009, Mr. Lau Chun Kay entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 2 years ending on 31st
December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 2 months

prior notice.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

On 13th February 2007, Mr. Ma Chun Hon, Richard entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 2 years ten
months and nineteen days ending on 31st December 2009. Either
party may at any time during the term terminate the contract by
giving the other not less than 2 months prior notice. The contract
should be deemed to have been renewed automatically for one
consecutive year period under the same terms and conditions of
the existing contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other at least 2 months prior to the end of the
term.

The Company has not entered into any service contract which
is not determinable within one year and without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EENRTETBRAERREHES

INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES EHoER
At 31st December 2009, the interests of the directors and chief RZEZNF+_A=+—8 ' BEEHRK

executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and HE1&HI352 Bz REMFE 2 ELMATES
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within B ARREERETEZTRABEARRF K
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance HE@EZE (TR REHRBEEMEXVEL)
(“SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept under ZBh - BERMDRESFTER 2R - %K
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company were as RARIBEEBM ZZEEEINT ¢

follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (a) A2FAER010 BT 2EEBR(K

(“Shares”) % 1)
Total interests
Number of shares as % of the
BB EE relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
AERLAE
A Rik =E Hits B EROIRE
®E i i #iH i L3 2B
MON Chung Hung - - 145,398,000 - 145,398,000 73.08%
wiRE (note 1HiE1)
KOO Di An, Louise - 145,398,000 - - 145,398,000 73.08%
B (note 2 fi5¥2)
LI Man Wai 2,350,000 - - - 2,350,000 1.18%
ESet]
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.15%
B
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - - 138,000 0.07%
2R
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(“Shares™)

note 1: The 145,398,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector Holdings
Limited, the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as
t0 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by
Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

note 2: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung. Ms. Koo

is thus deemed to be interested in 145,398,000 Shares by virtue of
her husband's interest therein.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As
at 31st December 2009, no short positions were recorded
in the Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of
substantial shareholders required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Share options

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 23rd
April 2003 (“Adoption Date"), resolutions had been passed
to terminate the share option scheme adopted on 5th
December 1996 (the “1996 Scheme”) and to adopt a new
share option scheme (the “2003 Scheme”) for the benefit
of employees and Directors of the Company. The principal
purposes of the 2003 Scheme are to enable the Group and
its invested entities to recruit and retain high calibre eligible
persons and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group or invested entities, to recognise the significant
contributions of the eligible persons to the growth of the
Group or invested entities and to further motivate and give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group or
invested entities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

40

Share options

The principal terms of the 2003 Scheme are summarized as

follows:

(1)

(ir)

Eligible person

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, Director (including
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Non-
Executive Director) or consultant of any members
of the Group or any invested entity who in the sole
discretion of the directors, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2003
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue at the Adoption Date (i.e. 19,895,800
shares on the basis of 198,958,000 shares in issue
as at the Adoption Date) unless the Company obtains
a fresh approval from its shareholders. Such shares
represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2003 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under the 2003
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company if such limit is exceeded.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each grantee

Unless separately approved by shareholders, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period must not exceed one (1) per cent. of
the shares in issue.

Option period

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it
shall commence on a date not earlier than the date on
which the option is granted or deemed to be granted
in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Scheme
("Commencement Date"”) and not be more than 10

years from the Commencement Date.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified
to him or her within 10 business days from the date
on which an offer is made to an eligible person, which
must be a business day (“Offer Date”), failing which
it shall be deemed to have been rejected. Upon
acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be a price determined by
the Directors at its absolute discretion and notified to
an eligible person and shall not be less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
Offer Date; (2) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the Offer Date; and (3) the nominal value of a Share.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERTIETHRABRBRASES
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES 3% > &35 ()
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) B (&)

(vii)  Term of the 2003 Scheme i) ZFEZE=F;EZHR
The 2003 Scheme will remain in force for a period of TET=FE 2 AU BEREMN
10 years commencing from the Adoption Date, after HEIRRET +4 - AR TEEE
which no further options shall be granted but the LR EERE R T =F
options which are granted during the life of the 2003 FEIFERANERE 2 BIRES A
Scheme may continue to be exercisable in accordance BEBERE ST =FE 21T
with their terms of issue and the provisions of the 2003 R T LATTE - M= =45
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force BEEMES A ERLAD
and effect in respect thereof. B+ BB RIER °

Up to 31st December 2009, no options have been granted HEZTTZNF+ZA=1+—H8 ¥

under the 1996 Scheme or the 2003 Scheme. REBRB-NANARFHE R _ZZT=

FEEIR LB A EARE o

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was Br EXXET RSN - AR B E E M

the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any BRBEARF AL RIELFERZHE

arrangements to enable the directors or chief executives of FARAIEFSHEFETHRABERES

the Company or any of their associates to acquire benefits ZEEBEATEREARD A K EAMm

by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the ERDEABEE Z RO SKESFMER

Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Other than the interests of the directors and chief executives of
the Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2009, the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO records interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Company
of the following corporation.

Number of shares

FERRRADBRAE 2

BEXFBBEZARREERTETHAR
ZhEm o RZZEAF+_A=1t—H"
RIFEHMHIEHRAIFEI36 KZREMFE
ZEBTMARCE - AT EAEBAERRRZH#E
@ (ERREHRRPERD) -

Total interests
as % of the

ROEA relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
BREREEE

A Rik EE Hity <2 BRITRE

®E i i gy & g 2B
Spector Holdings Limited 145,398,000 - - - 145,398,000 73.08%
Fang Zhun Chun 77 1R)% 9,958,000 - - - 9,958,000 5.00%

The share capital of the above company is owned as to 99.9% by
Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo
Di An, Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2009, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial
shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware,
there were no person who, as at 31st December 2009, directly
or indirectly held or was beneficially interested in shares
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

As at 10th March 2010, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this report, approximately 25.52% of the issued
capital of the Company is held by the public as required by Rule
8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AT 2 IR E B 99.9% M & 4R i 5 A VE
A HBTM01% HEBERMETZLTHES -

BFAEREGEH/ER R_TTENF T

R=+—H REBHFLHEEGIS36E2
HEMGFEZETERRIBMDIETRARE

SR KA -

BREXFEBEN RESEFHHN R_TZT
hE+=—A=+—8" jﬁﬁ%&ﬁ/\ﬂtaiﬁﬁ
MESANESEEARRIRENBARD
BITRRAR 5% A £ 2 B fn fEas o

HEZT-TF=F+H BIARET A
Eﬂéﬁfﬁa,ﬂ;ﬁ'$ RIMBEBITRANE
25.52% HARER - & Mm% 8.08
2 HRE °
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Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors have an interest in any business constituting
a competing business to the Group.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th March 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report %8 3 4% S £l 3R &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PERENNIAL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Perennial International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 131
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31st December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

BERKEEMER DA FIMLRR
(REFREZEZMAE L HERAAF])

AAZEAD (A TR 5] B F &SN
F48F 131 BEMEBMERAR([EAF])
REWBAR (5B [E%5E]) OKEMBR
= UREHERREER_ZEZNF+=
A=+ BMRA RARFBRAEEEE
ZALFENKEERE  BAFNE &
ERFEHRNGERERER  UREE
SEBURE R E A M AR -

ESHMBHRRARENERE

BEFAAERBEERSHNASHEMNE
B B 5 A AR IR E BCR ARG E
BREAERUELAEEMAFHIRZESE
MBHmE - EREERER  BkEER
RELABMA T REBRRAAENA
BRI - AEMBWMER N FERRRFERE
MM BEARFEREL - BENEREE
MR - RIRBERATEHAEN SR
ate
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report %8 3 4% S £l 3R &

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2009 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10th March 2010

=R

BMRE  ZEEREUBRRCRETEY
BREENEEMAFHRMREATREE
ERZZEENF+_A=T—HBHHEHNRR
REEBREHZZBLFENNBERBRE SR
2 WEEBEB(RRMEHDAEER T
RIRE -

BERKESTT RSB
EVcrE S

B8 —T-TF=ATH
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Consolidated Income Statement G &5EIH K

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2009 2008

ZEEAF ZTT)N\F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

iz FTET FHIT

Revenue Wz 4 411,192 507,628
Cost of sales SHERK A (313,807) (421,229)
Gross profit EF| 97,385 86,399
Other income H e 5 2,407 1,606
Distribution expenses DiHFAE (8,875) (11,522)
Administrative expenses TEA (45,286) (43,999)
Other operating expenses E AR (8,728) (2,800)
Operating profit iyl 6 36,903 29,684
Finance costs MSER 7 (1,589) (4,724)
Profit before taxation BRI 35,314 24,960
Taxation A 8 (5,123) (2,666)
Profit for the year ARE T 9 30,191 22,294
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) &REEA RESFZEF| (L) 11 15.2 11.2

Details of proposed final dividend payable to shareholders of the AN B [A) % 3R BRI B R HA AR B 2 FE IR O By

Company are set out in note 10. 10 ¢

The notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these 55 % 131 ERIMIGE RérE M5 IR MBS

consolidated financial statements. B ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 45 FEF&

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2009 2008
—EENF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Profit for the year NG Yo A 30,191 22,294
Other comprehensive income: Efh)FEH) -
Revaluation surplus on buildings BFZEHER 8,921 4,843
Deferred tax charged to EHBHRIR 2 EERIE
revaluation reserve (980) (1,299)
Exchange difference arising from WBARZz ARz ERER
translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries 3,100 5,847
Other comprehensive income for the year, SEREMFF - Fiig
net of tax 11,041 €391
Total comprehensive income attributable IR R B ER FE A 42 F
to shareholders of the Company 41,232 31,685

The notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these £ 55 131 BRI ARG M SRR RS

consolidated financial statements. BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %4 Bt I AR 3|

As at 31st December 2009 #Z —FZENF+—-H=1+—H

2009 2008
ZEEhF —TE)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat FTExT FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEMENEEE
Leasehold land and land use rights T AE S K {5 R A 14 33,873 34,694
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB kB 15 128,767 122,401
Investment property TEMZE 16 9,000 8,600
Non-current deposits ERBET S 247 2,510
Deferred tax assets RET IR S E 8(b) 2,181 1,442
174,068 169,647
Current assets mENE E
Inventories =& 18 64,412 68,542
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 19 87,586 106,576
Other receivables, deposits HAb EUERFK -
and prepayments A& RIBFFRIE 3,235 4,217
Derivative financial instruments MTESHRIA 25 - 776
Cash and cash equivalents e KREEEY 20 29,293 14,307
184,526 194,418
Total assets BHEE 358,594 364,065
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 21 19,896 19,896
Other reserves EH b 22 50,302 39,261
Retained earnings IREE & F
Others Hith 22 189,535 171,284
Proposed final dividend F AR BARR S 22 7,960 5,970
Total equity R 267,693 236,411
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #= & B #AR R 3R

As at 31st December 2009 #Z —FZENF+—-H=1+—H

2009 2008
ZEEhF —TE)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FHET FHT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE
Long-term bank loans REARITE R 23 - 2,030
Obligations under finance lease contracts FHEES K0RIE 23 2,056 4,283
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 8(b) 7,571 5,586
9,627 11,899
Current liabilities mEE &
Trade payables BB Z70E 24 31,585 31,382
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIE R ER R 24 19,463 15,220
Derivative financial instruments eI A 25 - 557
Taxation payable I8 3,417 1,499
Current portion of obligations under HESOEE—FR
finance lease contracts JEEERE 23 2,227 2,524
Current portion of long-term RERITER —FA
bank loans JEEERE 23 252 3,148
Short-term bank loans EEIRITE R 23 - 20,000
Trust receipt loans SRR E R 23 24,330 41,425
81,274 115,755
Total liabilities was 90,901 127,654
Total equity and liabilities BERRBEE 358,594 364,065
Net current assets mBEEFE 103,252 78,663
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 277,320 248,310
On behalf of the Board AEE20
MON Chung Hung LI Man Wai
&R Z= U
Director Director
EBEF )

The notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these £ 55 % 131 BRI ARG M SRR EEE

consolidated financial statements. BB o
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Statement of Financial Position B & Ak 7% 3®

As at 31st December 2009 R=-FZENF+—-A=+—H

2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M FEx FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EMENEE

Investments in subsidiaries RBARZZE 17 62738 62,738
Current assets mENE B

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A RIRIR 17 65,929 63,436

Other receivables, deposits HAb EUERK -

and prepayments HEISEE R 210 210

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 20 282 240

66421 | Gage
Total assets wEE 129,159 126,624
EQUITY =
Share capital A& 21 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H b 22 78,537 78,637
Retained earnings RE &R

Others HAh 22 22,454 21,861

Proposed final dividend IR AR EARR S 22 7,960 5,970
Total equity R 128,847 126,264
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities mEE &

Other payables and accruals HEARIE R ERT A 24 312 360
Total liabilities N =i 312 360
Total equity and liabilities BERNEEE 129,159 126,624
Net current assets mBEEFE 66,109 63,526
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEBEE 128,847 126,264
On behalf of the Board AEEZ 0
MON Chung Hung LI Man Wai
=R Z= R
Director Director
EF 5ZF

The notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BB -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4 &5 S B &

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z — =

ENF—A=1—HIFEF

Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
13 Hitnfit REEF k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT FAT THBT
Balance reported as at RZZZENF—A—H
Tst January 2009 P25 . 198% 89261 ] 177,254 . 236411 __
Profit for the year AERGF - - 30,191 30,191
Revaluation surplus on buildings BFERAG - 8,921 - 8,921
Deferred tax charged to HREf R ZBEERIE
revaluation reserve = (980) = (980)
Exchange difference arising MBARIB SR 2 Rk
from translation of financial LEXRZE
statements of subsidiaries — 3,100 - 3,100
Total comprehensive income for ~ EREA| » #1&
the year, netoftex e L1 S L5 41232
Dividends paid (b = = (9,950) (9,950)
At 31st December 2009 RZZEENF+=_A=1+—H 19,896 50,302 197,495 267,693
Representing: HER :
2009 final dividend proposed ZETNFRIRE 2 RARE 7,960
Others Hit 189,635
Retained earnings BEZTTNET=R
as at 31st December 2009 =+—HILZREBF 197,495
Balance reported as at —ZEN\F-A—H
Tst January 2008 B2 198% 29870 162920 212686
Profit for the year RERRA - - 22,294 22,294
Revaluation surplus on buildings EFZEHRH - 4,843 - 4,843
Deferred tax charged to MR = A 2 IRERIE
revaluation reserve = (1,299) = (1,299)
Exchange difference arising from B2 A8 ik 2 K
translation of financial EXRER
statements of subsidiaries - 5,847 - 5,847
Total comprehensive income for  FRFH - #i&
the year, netoftax T8989 22204 31,685
Dividends paid RS = = (7,960) (7,960)
At 31st December 2008 RZFZ\EF+=ZA=+—H 19,896 39,261 177,254 236,411
Representing: HER
2008 final dividend proposed T \FRREZRERE 5,970
Others Hit 171,284
Retained earnings BE-TT)\E+=HA
as at 31st December 2008 =+ —HIEZREAF 177,254

F55% 131 BN RirE M RRAER
consolidated financial statements. D o
Annual Report 2009
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 8B E£RER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2009 2008
—EThE ZETN\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrzz FRT THT
Cash flows from operating activities EETEHNESRE
Net cash generated from operations BEELNTRS 26(a) 75,689 42,694
Hong Kong profits tax paid XNBEBNEH (1,600) (785)
Overseas tax paid ISR (1,339) (708)
Interest received YRS 24 141
Net cash generated from operating activities HEEHMANTERS 72,774 41,342
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNRSRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREE (150) (5,087)
Deposits paid for additions of equipment SRRkt 7 P (1,430) (1,487)
Sale of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BE k&G 124 2
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMATEERS (1,456) (6,672)
Cash flows from financing activities METHHRSRE
Net repayment of trust receipt loans FEEETRIEER 26(b) (17,095) (49,936)
Net (repayments of)/increase in long-term bank loans % ({838 ) /#1E R HIRITER 26(b) (4,926) 77
(Repayments of)/increase in short-term bank loans ({83 ) /#18RHRITER 26(b) (20,000) 20,000
Repayments of capital element ERHESNEARID M
of finance lease contracts 26(b) (2,524) (2,580)
Interest of finance lease contracts MEBELFE (284) (453)
Bank loan interests RITERFIE (1,305) (4,271)
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders MAARRREZ RS (9,950) (7,960)
Net cash used in financing activities REEHAFRS (56,084) (45,123)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERALEENZ
cash equivalents B (RD) 15,234 (10,353)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January FNRE KRS SEY 14,307 24,646
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents 3R &IR &S B H ket (248) 14
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December FRESRELEEY 20 29,293 14,307

£ 55131 ENHIE AR A M B RRAER

BB -

The notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

There consolidated financial statements are presented

in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"”) unless

otherwise stated.

1.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, investment
property and derivative financial instruments which are

carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 3.

1.

TREHHRBE

BN SGRAMBREMRABZEE
SR BRER T X - FRAR B - It
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):=

B = INEERASN
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1.1 mEEE
IR B IRER IR BB B
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BEME  (TEMBITAZ G5t
R TYIRA R AR -

MRELTT & TSR M ER & T 15
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

56

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

The Group has adopted all of the new and
revised HKFRSs and interpretations that are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2009. There have been no significant
changes to the accounting policies applied in
the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December 2009, except for the

following adoption:

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial

Statements” (effective from 1st January 2009)

The revised standard prohibits the presentation
of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-
owner changes in equity’) in the statement
of changes in equity, requiring ‘'non-owner
changes in equity’ to be presented separately
from owner changes in equity in a statement of
comprehensive income. As a result the Group
presents in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity all owner changes in equity,
whereas all non-owner changes in equity
are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented to conform
with the revised standard. Since the change
in accounting policy only impacts presentation
aspects, there is no impact on earnings per
share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBEBE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 1.1 HEREE(E)
(a)  (Continued) (a) (&)

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (effective from
1st January 2009)

HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14, ‘'Segment
reporting’, and aligns segment reporting with
the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise
and related information’. The new standard
requires a ‘'management approach’, under
which segment information is presented on the
same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. This has resulted in an increase in the
number of reportable segments presented. The
Chief Executive Officer who is to designated as

chief operating decision maker.

EREUBEREERNER
[2EDE](R_BThF
—A—B&EX)

BB 5 R S 4RI S 8 SR AR
REB G ENE 1415
[HEHE ] TEREER
MBEEHEE 131 5 F
BEMER [HEEH
B EMBEER ]
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X RS HERFMAR
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TREEEERESE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

58

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

At the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the following are standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are published and potentially
relevant to the Group's operations, but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related Party Disclosures”
(effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning 1st January 2011)

HKAS 27 (revised), “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”, (effective for the Group

for annual periods beginning 1st January 2010)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Classification of Rights
Issue” (effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning 1st January 2011)

HKAS 39 (Amendment), “Eligible Hedge Items”
(effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning 1st January 2010)

HKFRS 1 (Revised), “First-time adoption of
HKFRSs" (effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning 1st January 2010)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments), “Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions” (effective
for the Group for annual periods beginning 1st
January 2010)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combinations”
(effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning 1st January 2010)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #tZ — &=

ENFF = A=+—HIFEZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. EESHBRBE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 1.1 HEHREE(E)
(b)  (Continued) b) (&)
HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” (effective BB HREERIO-[2
for the Group for annual periods beginning 1st MIAE] (RER=ZT—=
January 2013) F—A—HEBRFEER)
HK(IFRIC) Int 14, “Prepayments of a Minimum AR (BB BREZRES
Funding Requirement” (effective for the Group Eg)R2B14-[REES
for annual periods beginning 1st January 2011) REMBRNR] (EER=
T——F—A—BREE
£
HK(IFRIC) Int 17 “Distribution of Non-cash AR (BB BREZRES
Assets to Owners” (effective for the Group for Bg)2B17-[mMmEE
annual periods beginning 1st January 2010) DIEFREEE] (RER
—ZT-ZF-—A—BEF
EAEB)
HK(IFRIC) Int 19, “Extinguishing Financial ﬁiﬁ(f"ﬂﬂ%iﬁiﬁﬁi
Liabilities with Equity Instruments” (effective Be)R2EB19 [ UExET
for the Group for annual periods beginning 1st BEkemat] (RER
January 2011) —E——F—A—HEF
EER)
The adoption of the above standards, amendments LA 2281 - (85T R EIR B 2ERIR
and interpretations to existing standards in future E%%%E@?%FHEH%KT\@?EHﬂﬁﬁ
periods is not expected to result in substantial changes I BREKRERNTE -
to the Group's accounting policies.
In addition, Hong Kong Institute of Certified BN BEGTMAGEEFH
Public Accountants also published a number of ErEIRE A —RIHBFLE
amendments to the existing standards under its annual AIEEET - WWFERT TR AR
improvement projects. These amendments are not SEEE R BIRAE BRI
expected to have a significant financial impact on the -

results and financial position of the Group.

60
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=1—HILF/ZF

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FEEHBERHBE (F)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.2 Consolidation 1.2 HZREMERR

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are

eliminated.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment of losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income

statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBERRBEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 1.3 IMEBRE (&)
(i) Group companies (iii)  ZEEZA]
The results and financial position of all the group SEETHRERARINER
entities that have a functional currency different HE2REBN A6
from the presentation currency are translated Bk HEEMBBARR
into the presentation currency as follows: HIEA TR ERRAB 2R
B
(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of () BEMBKRIXRZE
financial position presented are translated EXRAEHRZTE
at the closing rate at the date of that AR 4 E H Ry E =
statement of financial position; NEREWMEY
(i)  income and expenses for each income (i) HFEEZRIBAKR
statement are translated at an average SHHEZFEEF
exchange rate for the year; and HEXFERERE
kR
(i) all resulting exchange differences are (i) PAEERZZEHHER
recognised as a separate component of RiEEAR—ED
equity. TH o
On consolidation, exchange differences arising TR bliR & IS mER - MEE
from the translation of the net investment in foreign INETER)FIRE - I AR R AE
operations are taken to equity. When a foreign mEEN e EEH —HEMES
operation is sold, exchange differences that were B R EERANER =
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated BN EBERRNERALE
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. EEH)—EB0 ©

Annual Report 2009 —EEHhEEH 63




Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBERE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.4 Investment property 1.4 BEWE

64

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group's companies, is classified as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held
under operating leases. Land held under operating
lease is classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. The valuation is reviewed annually by
an external independent valuer on an open market
basis. Separate value is not attributed to land and
buildings. The valuation is incorporated in the financial
statements. Changes in fair values are recognised in
the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Buildings

Buildings comprise factories and offices.
Buildings are shown at fair value, based on
regular valuations by an external independent
valuer, less subsequent depreciation and
impairment. Any accumulated depreciation
and impairment at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to building
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in the
income statement, in which case the increase is
credited to the income statement to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same
asset are charged against building revaluation
reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are

expensed in the income statement.

1. FESHBERBEE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery,
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, motor
vehicles and pleasure boat are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
which comprises construction costs, purchase
costs and other related expenses incurred in
connection with the construction of buildings,
plant and machinery for own use, less provision

for impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation on buildings is calculated to write
off their valuation less accumulated impairment
losses on a straight-line basis over the unexpired
period of the leases or their estimated useful
lives, whichever is shorter. The principal annual

rates used range from 2.5% to 5%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Depreciation (Continued)
Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a reducing balance
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold improvements ~ 20% or lease period,
which ever is shorter

Plant and machinery 2.5%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 15%-20%
Pleasure boat 10%

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant

and equipment.

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

1. FESHREHE (A)

1.5 #% - BEKRE(HE)

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBEBE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 1.5 Y% BERRE(E)
(iv)  Others (Continued) (iv) Efh (&)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are BENFREEBRAER
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end FHEGEREHERE
of each reporting period. ETRE - REEERH
# o

An asset’s carrying amount is written down EEEMNEREESRNEMA
immediately to its recoverable amount if the AT E(EE - HERAE
asset's carrying amount is greater than its BB 08 2= ] U Bl £ 58 ©

estimated recoverable amount.

(v)  Gains or losses on disposals (iv) EBEBEFERZEE
Gains or losses on disposals are determined REREEENMEZIA
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. HE B ERME &t
These are included in the income statement. HERHEAE B AESE
Where revalued assets are sold, the amounts mak PRI - BEMME
included in buildings revaluation reserve are BEHE EREEYFESE
transferred to retained earnings. HEEPHBNEEER

BAF -
1.6 Assets under finance leases/operating leases 1.6 M KeEHE

(i) Operating leases () KEHE
Leases in which a significant portion of the MBEEEEENERDBH
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by [2, B2 AN Bl 5} B3 AR AR
the lessor are classified as operating leases. B pBEALEEHE IR
Payments made under operating leases (net BEERESNRRIE (0
of any incentives received from the lessor) are B B oA A YER 2 ({7 52
charged in the income statement on a straight- Be&) RHEEHANER
line basis over the period of the leases. ERTABRERNA o

68  Perennial International Limited B8 &£ @A R 2 5




Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=1—HILF/ZF

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Assets under finance leases/operating leases
(Continued)

(ii)

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance lease assets.
Finance lease assets are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease and at the lower
of the fair value of the assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the outstanding finance balance. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current
borrowings. The interest element of the finance
cost is recognised in the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

1.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost

less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses (if any). Cost mainly represents

consideration paid for the rights to use the land on

which various plants and buildings are situated for a

period of 46-50 years from the date the respective right

was granted. Amortisation of leasehold land and land

use rights is charged in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the leasehold land

and land use rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8

1.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Such impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items
on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at as

follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(i)~ Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

(i)~ Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced
price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling

expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=1—HILF/ZF

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.10 Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade and other receivables are
categorised as loan and receivable financial assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivable. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. Significant financial difficulty of the debtor,
probably that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the income statement. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previous written off are credited

in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are categorised

as loan and receivable financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3 R Mt 5%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.12

1.13

Trade and other payables
The Group's trade and other payables are categorised
as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Borrowings
The Group's borrowings are categorised as financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are charged to the income
statement in the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &3k R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time

of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plan are expected to be
settled within twelve months and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Retirement benefit costs

For Hong Kong employees, the Group
contributes to Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") scheme in accordance with Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ remuneration received. The Group’s
contributions to MPF scheme are expensed as
incurred. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an

independently administered fund.

For employees in the Mainland China, the Group
contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme managed by the local municipal
government in Mainland China. The local
municipal government in the Mainland China
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to the qualified employees
in Mainland China for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The Group's
contributions to the retirement scheme are

expensed as incurred .
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=1—HIFF/ZF

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESTHTHRRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Current and deferred income tax 1.15 ERFRIELERIE

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBERRBEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.16 Revenue recognition 1.16 W

76

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, interest
income and operating lease rental income in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discount, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title

has passed.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(i) Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.17

1.18

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

Dividend distribution

Final dividend proposed to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is

approved by the Company'’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.19

1.20

Derivate financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
caterorised as financial assets/liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at its fair value. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the Company to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Company measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
“Revenue”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,

price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. The Group's overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets

and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of

the Group.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“"RMB").
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. In addition, the conversion of RMB
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China monetary authority.

Should HK$ strengthened/weakened by
5% (2008: 6%) during the years ended 31st
December 2009 against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, the impact of the profit
after taxation and the equity for the year would
have been approximately HK$654,000 (2008:
HK$263,000), higher or lower.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

rf 2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. BMEERBRER(E)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HIHEKREZE(E)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () HEERE(E)

Certain of the assets of the Group are denominated
in United States Dollar (“USD"), but the foreign
exchange risk is considered not significant as HK$
exchange rate is pegged to USD.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB and USD are insignificant to the Group.

Price risk

The Group exposes to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials such as copper rods
and chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which
can mitigate the price risk. The Group has not
used any derivative instruments to hedge such

€conomic exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Details of the Group's
borrowings have been disclosed in Note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not used any hedging
arrangement to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

Perennial International Limited 128 E AR A 7

EEZETEEUEXTR
Bfi- A TEXTH
o SNERBRIYTERX -

BRARBRETINOEE
ZM B EENMBBRNINE
EEREAREERTRE

1B15m R
SEEFAX T ERF AN
A SE LB B R )L 2
M2 TIHERKE -

SERAKERARER
ETCERNEMHER
WHENEREETER
IEF R ERER - AR E
WREMAITET AL
R ERR -

T 2 5

ANE B /A K R bR R B S
B RZEEERAEET
RIBe A KRR - TE
ERBAAREEERA
REEMNERRE - AEEH
BEFBEREA MR
RAEMFE23HE -

5 B3 AL AR R A K42
HRSR EL R R E R



Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=1—HIFF/ZF

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group's profit after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available at
the balance sheet date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with
other variables held constant.

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the profit after taxation of a 100 basis-point
change in interest rate would be an increase/
decrease of HK$327,000 and HK$740,000 for
the years ended 31st December 2009 and 2008,

respectively.

Credit risk

The Group’s bank balances are deposited with
financial institutions with reliable and acceptable
rating quality. Management regularly assesses
the credit risk of these financial institutions by
reviewing their published financial information
and credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of each
financial asset, including cash at bank, trade
and other receivables, as disclosed on the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

82

(CONTINUED)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$131,000,000 (2008:
HK$137,000,000), representing 32% (2008:
27%) of total revenue for the year. The total trade
receivable balance of these top 5 customers as
at 31st December 2009 was HK$27,754,000
(2008: HK$32,680,000).

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed
by external agencies, and makes periodic
assessment of the customers’ payment history
to assess the recoverability of trade receivables

of its customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities with staggered maturities to reduce
refinancing risk in any year and to fund working
capital, debt servicing, dividend payments, new
investments and close out market positions
if required. The Group maintains significant
flexibility to respond to opportunities and events
by ensuring that committed credit lines available.
As at 31st December 2009, the Group had
available banking facilities of HK$205,535,000 of
which HK$28,865,000 were utilised.

The table below analyses the Group's financial

liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities

into relevant maturity groupings based on the

remaining period at the end of the reporting date to

the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their

carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

*’ 2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2. MEBEREE(E)

management is to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, maintain a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the
business and to enhance shareholder value.

84
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(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HIHEKREZE(E)
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years
15K 1E25R 2E5FR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FExT
Group rEHE
At 31st December 2009 R-BBAF+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 253 - -
Finance lease liabilities MERERE 2,390 2,107 -
Trust receipt loans SRR E R 24,330 = -
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M ERFRIA
and accruals K FEET 51,048 - -
At 31st December 2008 R-ZEZENFE+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 23,336 1,907 168
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 2,808 2,390 2,108
Trust receipt loans EEBURE R 41,425 = =
Derivative financial TEERITA
instruments 557 - —
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FEAFIE
and accruals K et RS2 46,602 = =
Company PN
At 31st December 2009 R=BZEAF+=A=+—H
Other payables and accruals — H b fE {508 KR FX 312
At 31st December 2008 R=ZBEN\F+=-A=+—H
Other payables and accruals — H A0 & FIA K & FIX 360
(b) Capital risk management (b) EBEERRERE
The primary objective of the Group's capital SEECEENEEZEE 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholder, issue new
shares or raise and repay debts. The Group's capital
management objectives, policies or processes were
unchanged during the years ended 31st December
2008 and 2009.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings (Note 23). Total
capital includes total borrowings and total equity as
shown on the consolidated statement of financial

2. MEBEREE(E)

(b)
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position.
The gearing ratios at 31st December 2008 and 2009 BHE_ZZ N\EKZZETNEF+=
were as follows: A=+—BILFEaBEEELX
U

2009 2008

—EEAF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FAxT

Total borrowings BEE 28,865 73,410

Total equity RS 4AER 267,693 236,411

Total capital BEIR 296,558 309,821

Gearing ratio BEEELX 10% 24%

The decrease in the gearing ratio in 2009 is mainly due
to a decrease in bank loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

’r 2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. HBRAKREE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value estimation (c) AREME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
and short-term borrowings approximate to their fair
values due to their short-term maturities. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is

available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The Group did not have any derivative financial
instruments as at 31st December 2009. The fair value
of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
and liabilities held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at end of each reporting
period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining

financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Taxation
The Group is subject to taxation in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for taxation. Sufficient provisions are
set aside to meet all tax liabilities. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. HAEEAERER(E)
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Estimated fair value of properties (b) MHETHIEARE

88

The fair values of investment property and office
and factory buildings are determined at the end of
each reporting period by an independent professional
valuer. The fair value of investment property is
determined on an open market value basis by
reference to comparable market transactions and
where appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of
the net rental income/net income after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for
reversionary income potential. The fair values of office
and factory buildings are determined on depreciated
replacement cost basis. These methodologies are
based upon estimates of future results and a set
of assumptions as to income and expenses of the
property and future economic conditions.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing

and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue

recognised during the year is as follows:

4,

BREME BOARIBETH
AREREBERSHERDH
—BUBRM[ERRE - RED
ENAAELEATLRTHMR
MARTSERREEBRES
WA AEE R P EBUR AR
(EBEEMH) ENcnERS
WA FBA o DR THEF
MARBRFTEREEKRATT A
RIE o A ETETIRBARKRER
BV EFT M — R BRI R BA
FNSE Hh e 5 2R A 17 350 1 4 HE R

WK D EBER

AEETELLHENETERRE
REMER - FRFIRZWEIT

2009 2008

—EENE —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Sale of goods HE 411,192 507,628
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” replaces HKAS 14
“Segment Reporting” with effect from 1st January 2009.
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires the disclosure
of information about the Group’s operating segments. It
replaces the requirement under HKAS 14 to determine
primary (business) and secondary (geographical) reporting
segments of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer (the
chief operating decision maker) reviews the Group's internal
reporting and determines that there are five reportable
segments, based on location of customers under cable and
wire products business, including Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Other Asian Countries, America and Europe. These

Wz ko ESER (&)

EBR=_ZTTNF—A—RB  BFEY
BAER8[ EEH E | MR B BG4
14 IERE | - BBV BESE—1E
BREFEERAEEHLES BEHR
BT SRR BEASSFENI14FER
BEAEBFE(EBH) MK OGLE)
WMEDE  c EERREBEREEGREBR T
RIEE AN  THRAH (BFEE
RRE)EHEAEBANPRE RETE
AESH - BEES - REAE .- H
MR - EMNREOM - @5 F
&) 7 AR 3R B8 H R B AN B 3 = A Bl

segments are managed separately as each segment is EHith =B -
subject to risks and returns that are different from the

others.
The segment information for the reportable segments for the BE_ZTZNR-ZTZ ) N\FERES
years ended 31st December 2009 and 2008 are as follows: R EERT ¢
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation Amortisation
g
(MEREHE) DEELE BANEE BAMEX e #e
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009

“EEAE CEEAE  CEBAE  SEEAF —EEAE CREIAF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET THx THR THx
Hong Kong B 176,259 20,668 109,432 152 1,894 554
Mainland China HEIARE 61,824 6,487 177,365 2,638 7,446 368
Other Asian Countries  E#1EaMiEIR 42,156 4,958 9,741 - - -
America e 128,191 9,693 41,175 - - -
Europe B 2,762 325 9,700 - - -
Reportable segment &5 411,192 42,131 347,413 2,790 9,340 922
Unallocated costs, AOEER
net of income HRRMA (5,228)
Operating profit vl 36,903
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EE/NF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WERDHER (F)

(CONTINUED)
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets  expenditure  Depreciation  Amortisation
e
(OMEBERE) PREE  BHBEE  AAERX & B
2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
—ZTNF —ZTN\F —ZTN\E ZETN\F —ZTN\E —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT THT TAT THT THET
Hong Kong BB 217,971 19,861 112,601 29 2,033 554
Mainland China REIARE 84,370 6,296 179,409 17,725 6,622 346
Other Asian Countries  EiZ5MER 43,098 3,799 10,740 - - -
America EM 156,177 4,726 49,724 - - -
Europe B 7,012 618 1,549 - - -
Reportable segment &5 507,628 35,300 354,023 17,754 8,665 900
Unallocated costs, APEER
net of income MBRUA (5,616)
Operating profit mEER 29,684
A reconciliation of total segment assets to Group's total BOBEELREBBEENER -
assets:
2009 2008
ZEThEF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Total segment assets B EPEE 347,413 354,023
Investment property A 9,000 8,600
Deferred tax assets RIEFI IR & B 2,181 1,442
Total assets BEE 358,594 364,065
There is no sales between the reporting segments. REDEZ MW EERHE -
Unallocated costs, net of income, represent mainly RAOBRER  HIKRBRAEZERAIX
corporate expenses and income from investment property. BRI EFEWA -
Revenue of approximately HK$75,828,000 (2008: W25 475,828,000 8 T (ZFZ/)\F -
HK$75,962,000) is derived from a single customer. 75,962,000 7)) 2R E B —EEF o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

OTHER INCOME 5. Htlkzs
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Gross rental income from wEMEHE
investment property WA ERE 143 320
Revaluation surplus on WEMZEZ
investment property SHhABHK 400 =
Reversal of impairment provision W - BE R
on property, plant and equipment i HI=IETE 914 -
Sundry income E A A 926 1,145
Interest income FLEMA 24 141
2,407 1,606
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

6.

92

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after charging the following:

2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Amortisation and depreciation: BERITE -
Amortisation of leasehold land FE i K& b
and land use rights {5 R A B 922 900
Depreciation of owned property, BEME - BE
plant and equipment KRB ETE 8,187 7,200
Depreciation of property, plant RIEREBEL
and equipment held BEZME -
under finance lease contracts = MR AT & 1,153 1,465
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN S 1,357 1,444
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 240,104 349,811
Net exchange loss SN ETIE 471 166
Operating lease rentals in respect T RIEFZ
of land and buildings LERNED 320 255
Outgoing expenses in respect BT IH
of investment property 14 14
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BER
plant and equipment RiEEE 42 184
Net loss on derivative financial MTEeMIAFER
instruments 219 6
Written-off of trade receivables FEUE 5 R gH 2,660 1,246
Provisions for returns RERRERE
and doubtful debts 3,936 2,419
Staff costs (including directors’ BINAK(BEEEHE)
emoluments) (note 12) (FFzE12) 73,180 68,739
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z — =

ENF—A=1—HIFEF

FINANCE COSTS 7. BKERA
2009 2008
—sehE —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Interest on bank loans — wholly RITERFE
repayable within five years ERAFAZEEER 1,305 4,271
Interest of finance lease contracts HESHHR ZH 8 284 453
1,589 4,724
TAXATION 8. ®imE
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate (a) BBFEHDBRBERNFEZ GG
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable FERTEM16.5% (ZZEZT N\F :
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has 16.5% ) 2 T =B - /5 5NgE F
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit MIBRAKEREE 2 (h5HER
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the Blm MR AR EBER 2 IRT
countries in which the Group operates. TEH o
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the Mk (GEA) GRBBE R 2B
consolidated income statement represents: &
2009 2008
—EENEF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Hong Kong profits tax BEBNEH 3,190 1,088
Overseas taxation TFHNRIR 1,162 1,113
Under/(over)-provision in prior year — FRIT R, (B%E) #fs 505 (260)
Deferred taxation relating to the TRERNESE
origination and reversal of 58 2 El s i U )
temporary differences (note 8(b)) (FF5E8(b)) 266 725
5,123 2,666
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ
8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. FIE (&)
(&)

(@)  (Continued) (a)

REEB AR ADGE N 2 IR E
BREBEBNEHEMAEZ

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

94

using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: R =20 ¢
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Profit before taxation FRA Al A 35,314 24,960
Calculated at a taxation rate B E16.5% (ZTTN\F ¢
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) 16.5% ) 5t & < T8 5,827 4,118
Income not subject to taxation BRI Z WA (3,265) (1,811)
Effect of different taxation rate B BER MR R 2 &
in other countries 663 821
Expenses not deductible for TR 2 2 H
taxation purposes 750 615
Under/(over)-provision in prior year R E,/(1B%8) BfE 505 (260)
Utilisation of previously AR AARA R 2TIE
unrecognised tax losses - (550)
Effect of change in taxation rate TR o & - (319)
Others EAh 643 52
Taxation charge FRF0kR 5,123 2,666
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. ®mE(ME)
(b)  The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax (b) EBEEFHEBEEERECHEAES
liabilities is as follows: HranR :
Deferred tax assets to be recoverd: AIU EREFRIBE E ¢
2009 2008
—sEnE  —FTNA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
— Within 12 months +=@AN - =
— More than 12 months wBE+=EA 2,181 1,442
2,181 1,442
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled: A HEERIBEE
2009 2008
—senE —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
— Within 12 months +=EAR - =
— More than 12 months BE+—EA 7,571 5,586
7,571 5,586
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. BE(HE)
(b)  The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax (b) EBEEFHEBEERECHREAES
liabilities is as follows: (Continued) M (&)
The movement on the net deferred tax liabilities FIREHIE B EM B RERESH W
account is as follows: Ik
Group
TEH
2009 2008
SE 1 PR L Y
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1st January m—H—H 4,144 2,120
Deferred taxation MkiFaEmkz
charged to the consolidated RIETIE (5T 8(a))
income statement (note 8(a)) 266 725
Deferred taxation charged to Mk EESE (GG EETE
building revaluation reserve 980 1,299
At 31st December R+=ZRA=+—H 5,390 4144
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. TIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEAE

The movements on the deferred tax liabilities, without taking ERBEZERER —BBEEREANIEH
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same HEE - REMIEAEBEMBERESE N
tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T

Group
£33
Tax depreciation and

revaluation surplus

BEFEREGRH

2009 2008

—EThE T N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

At 1st January m—A—H 5,586 5,021

Charged/(credited) to the BireBmKxP NG

consolidated income statement (Gt A) 1,964 (734)
Deferred taxation charged to building MBREEEGFEERESIE

revaluation reserve 980 1,299

At 31st December R+=ZA=+—8 8,530 5,586
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. BiE(E)
Deferred tax assets BELEBEEE
The movements on the deferred tax assets, without taking EREERER —BBKEERNIEH
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same HEE - REMIEEEN B REREE N
tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T
Group
AEE
Tax depreciation Others Total
BIEHE Hitr Fot ]
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

ZEENE ZEE\F ZRBhE —ZI\F ZBEAF "ETI)N\F
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000
TET TAT TR TAT TR THAT

At 1st January ®—A—AH 642 2,376 800 525 1,442 2,901
Credited/(charged) to HVACIEY)

the consolidated HEBEK

income statement 1,248 (1,734) 450 275 1,698 (1,459)
At 31st December R+=A=+—H 1,890 642 1,250 800 3,140 1,442
There were no material unprovided deferred taxation as at R-ZEENR_ZEZTALF+_A
31st December 2008 and 2009. =+—BRBEAREHRELENE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. ARFERF
The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial FFARRR M B HRE 2 ANFE R B
statements of the Company to extent of a profit of 12,633,000/ L (=TT )\F : B8
HK$12,533,000 (2008: loss of HK$399,000) 399,000/87T) °
DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2009 2008
“EThE —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interim, paid, of HK$0.02 R @A% 2 Bl 2 B IR
(2008: HK$0.02) per ordinary share FRERRE (ZZTT\F : 28(0) 3,980 3,980
Final, proposed, of HK$0.04 FRTEBAR 4 B0 2 BRIk
(2008: HK$0.03) per ordinary share REAMRE (ZZZ)\F : 38(L) 7,960 5,970
11,940 9,950
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 &% —

10.

11.

FEAFS A=+~ HAUFE

DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

At a meeting held on 10th March 2010, the Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in
these consolidated financial statements, but will be reflected
as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending
31st December 2010.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group's profit for the year of HK$30,191,000 (2008:
HK$22,294,000) divided by the weighted average number
of 198,958,000 (2008: 198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue

10. RE (&)

11.

R-E-TF=A+ARGZEH
b EFRREEADRS SRR
BBl - EFHRE RS LR AL
ARBRERFIEBARE - HIGR
BE-T-FFT-A=t-ALE
BRI BRI ER IR 2 DR -

BREF

BREABNIBEFAZ AEEAR
FFZ % 30,191,000 L ( —ZEZEN
F 122,294,000 70) MIZFANE BT
I3 AR 2 004 13 198,958,000 A%

during the vyear. (—=Z \4 : 198,958,000 f%) 5t&

In both 2009 and 2008, diluted earnings per share is the RZZBZNFER=ZZTZNFE B
same as basic earnings per share due to the absence of REEBEHEEBRANEER W
dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the year-end date. GRS SR A B E EUR G R OR N AR R e

12. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 12. EIRA (BREEHE)

EMOLUMENTS)

2009 2008
SE 1 PR L Y
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits Y - T&E REEINERL 69,871 65,720
Social security costs HERER A 2,526 2,262

Pension costs — contribution to RRK AN — 582 512l
MPF scheme {EH 2 R 323 426
Others Efih 460 331
73,180 68,739
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY 13. EERGEEEABZHE
MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESHM
The remuneration of each director for the year ended BHE—_ZTZThEF+=-A=+—H
31st December 2009 is set out below: ILFE - BRESOFHMAOT :
Discretionary Other

Name of director Fee Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total

EEnA we e miERe  HaEH (i) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FHBT T T T T

MON Chung Hung

BRI - 4,560 950 12 5,522

KOO Di An, Louise

RE - 1,320 380 12 1,712

LI Man Wai

£ - 1,896 950 276 3,122

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

BB - 600 128 411 1,139

MON Wai Ki, Vicky

RIEH - 294 35 12 341

MON Tiffany

hER - 396 194 12 602

CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin

(i) and (iv)

EPBEZN () K2 (iv) 240 - - - 240

LAU Chun Kay (i)

ZIREL (i) 180 - - - 180

MA Chun Hon, Richard (i)

BIE () 65 - - - 65
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY
MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION
(CONTINUED)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2008 is set out below:

13. EERSEEEBAEZHE

(%&)

(a)

EEEH (E)
HE_ZZN\F+=-_A=+—H
IEFE  SEZESHNEHHT ¢

Discretionary Other
Name of director Fee Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
BTEME ik e WMiERe  EAEH (i) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fis7T T T Tt
MON Chung Hung
R - 4,560 700 12 5,272
KOO Di An, Louise
FEEz - 1,320 280 12 1,612
LI Man Wai
=374 - 1,886 700 286 2,872
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
BB = 600 165 459 1,224
MON Wai Ki, Vicky
ERst) - 306 31 12 349
MON Tiffany
#=ER - 396 224 12 632
CHENG Kwok Kit,
Edwin (i) and (iv)
BRI () B2 (iv) 73 - - - 73
LAU Chun Kay (i)
SR () 180 - - - 180
LIAO Zhixiong (i) and (iii)
RS () B iii) 67 - - - 67
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i)
FHIE (i) 82 - - - 82
(i) BYIFMITES

(i) Independence non-executive directors

(ii) Other benefits include commission, quarters allowance, travel
allowance and MPF scheme contribution

(iii) Resigned on 11th September 2008

(iv) Appointed on 11th September 2008
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY 13. EERSEEBEAEZHMS
MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) HNUBRSHMAL
In 2009 and 2008, the five individuals, whose RZZBEZNFERZZZNF, &
emoluments were the highest in the Group included UEaFMALTAOUES R
four directors and one senior staff whose emoluments —uEEEEAE(MeERE
band is within HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000. The 1,000,001 8 7c 22,000,000 7T
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the 2B BEZMEBEEHRN EX
analysis presented above. DT o
() Key management compensation (c) EEBEABZHM
2009 2008
“EThE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EA#F < « BEZ0 -

other allowances and H 288 REWMFa

benefits in kind 12,453 12,492
Discretionary bonuses HiERe 2,805 2,300
Pension costs — contribution RREK AN — 5882 512

to MPF scheme fEH 2 K 108 108

15,366 14,900
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

L i

~ 14. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14. THEER T EAE
RIGHTS
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights RNEE z & R+ i ARSI
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net ENKEHEREREREFES T
book values are analysed as follows: o
Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
At 1st January n—A—H 34,694 29,562
Additions B - 5,602
Amortisation of leasehold land THAEE R T
and land use rights {5 FR e 8 (922) (900)
Exchange adjustment HE e A B 101 430
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 33,873 34,694
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
In Hong Kong held on: REBES :
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years HERTER+F2H 20,284 20,838
Outside Hong Kong held on: REINER -
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years HERTER+F2H 13,589 13,856
33,873 34,694
At 31st December 2009, the net book value of leasehold N\_ZETRFE+_A=+—H K&
land pledged as security for the Group's bank loans [ $R 17 5 5% LA BR I {8 20,284,000 7% 7T
amounted to HK$20,284,000 (2008: HK$20,838,000). —Z= 2% )\ :20,838,000/8 L) £
MPEREA

104 Perennial International Limited 184542 @75 R A



Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BRERRZE
Group
A58
Buildings (Note) Leasehold
BT (W) improve-  Plantand  Fumitwe  Offce  Motor  Pleasure Construction
Inside HK  Qutside HK ments  machingry andfixtures equipment  vehicles boat i progress Total

BBk BAR  HOE
L34 L7 4 #E 5 E i BE ERIR a8
HKS000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
fén fér TR R R T T TR TR TER

Net book valug N-EENE-A-A

at st January 2009 bd e 97 G 463 24 130 5,05 8 180 -1
Additions i - - 816 83 11 8 " - - 279
Disposals & - - - [51) [12) (16) (81) - - (166]
Depreciation i (B (1589) (Gog)  (4188) (189) (981) [9g)  (1129) - )
Revaluation Bf M 8921 - - - - - - - 9,83
Exchangeadusiment ~ EX5E - 3,380 (16) 19) (5] (26) 1) - - 34
Net book valug at REERNETA

3stDecember 2009 =T-RZE@SE 1050 74983 4,987 18972 152 5124 2 106n -1

At31stDecember 2009 H-ZENE

+-f=1-H
Atcost A - - 8061 833 5% 1258 50 14667 -8
Atvaluation - 2009 8- 2330 10500 7498 - - - - - - - 54
Accumuleted depreciation  ZEHTE - - (o7 (4372 4B (61290 B38)  (3.99) - (e5456)
Net book value EsE 10500 74988 497 189m 1252 514 2m 0 -1
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MERRE (F)
(CONTINUED)
Group
A5H
Buidings (Note) Leasehold
BT (H3) mpove-— Plantand — Furnture Office Motor  Pleasure Construction
Inside HK Qutside HK ments  machinery  and fixtures  equipment  vehicles boat  In progress Total

BER  BAR BOE
4 7l 3 (= i i i B ERIR g
HS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS00
fin  TEn  TAn TEm TR TR TR TEn TR TEn

Net book value R-ZENF-R-A
at 1st January 2008 LEESE 10,148 44520 3969 17,742 1397 5,045 3,131 13,046 9846 108,844
Additions hE - 2,55 128 7890 76 804 9 - - 12192
Disposals i3 - - - (119) ) (t6) (1) - - (186)
Transfer £ - 9846 - - - - - - e -
Depreciation i (251) (1.407) (396) (3,750) (163) (861) (581) (1,246) = (8,605)
Revaluation & - 484 - - - - - - - 48
Exchange adjustment B - 3914 3 694 4 83 i - - 5,403
Net book value at R=BBNETA
31st December 2008 =T-BZERRE 9897 64,271 4693 2,457 1330 5225 2108 11,800 - 1240
At31stDecember 2008 H=EENF
t2fzt-B
At cost A - - 12N 82,999 h,761 10518 5910 14,667 - 12016
At valuation - 2008 fHE--22)\E 9897 e - - - - - - - 74168
Accumulated depreciation  ZiEHE - - (2578 (60542) [4431) (5,299) (3182 (2867) - (B89
Net book value FHEE 9897 64,271 4693 2,467 1330 5225 218 11,800 - 1240
Net book value of TREE/ BHE:
finance lease assets:
At31stDecember 2009 HZSTAE
1-A=1-8 - - - - - - 319 1059 - 10917
At3ist December 2008 HZ5ZNE
+-f=4-A - - - - - 4B - g
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MERRE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Note: Buildings were revalued using depreciated replacement cost approach s : R=TETNF+=-A=+—8  EFH
valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent firm ?%45}%13@%%%%?‘?%5&@5&%
of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December 2009. Buildings were EREEXNAFEZEESH - N2
revalued using depreciated replacement cost approach by Centaline ZNF+=ZA=+—8 ' EFHFRA
Surveyors Limited as at 31st December 2008. ERTERARRITEREEN AT A

ZEESR -
The carrying amount of these buildings would have been MZEEF IR ANERTE R 2ER
HK$44,981,000 (2008: HK$48,484,000) had they been stated at cost BEEINE IZSHEEWEZER
less accumulated depreciation. {EE A 44,981,0008 L ( —TZ )\ 4F :

48,484,000 7T) ©

At 31st December 2009, the net book value of buildings pledged REZFBZNF+=A=+—80 " EEF
as security for the Group's bank loans amounted to HK$10,500,000 fE4 #£10,500,000 L (=TT )\ F :
(2008: HK$9,897,000). 9,897,000/ L) Z18F - EERAKE

RITERZ B

Building are held on leases of between 10 to 50 years. BFHEHR10E50F ©
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. REWE

Group

REE
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Net book value at 1st January R—A—BZRmFE 8,600 8,600

Revaluation surplus credited to the BHBHBRITAGEBRE

consolidated income statement 400 -
Net book value at 31st December R+=ZA=+—BZEm%E 9,000 8,600
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 16.

108

(@) Investment property was revalued on the basis of open
market value by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
an independent firm of chartered surveyors as at 31
December 2009. Investment property was revalued by
Centaline Surveyors Limited as at 31 December 2008.

(b) At 31st December 2009, the net book value of
investment property pledged as security for the
Group’s bank loans amounts to HK$9,000,000 (2008:
HK$8,600,000).

() The Group's interest in investment property is

analysed as follows:

REW=E (&)

(a)

(c)

BEMERB LS EGEMEE
ROTBERAABBE-ZSZNF
+—A=+— B AHmMEZE
EEH - RZZEZNF+=A
=+—B REWEHFRAE
MITARARE -

ZTAF+_A=+—8"
R 17 B 5 LA BRE 189,000,000
(== Z )\ F : 8,600,000
TT) B A M IR R o

%%

REBEZREDMERERZ DT
T

2009 2008
—EhE —TENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
In Hong Kong, held on: REBES
Lease of between 10 to 50 years HERTER+F2H 9,000 8,600
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

17. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 17. RMIB QB 2RER IR
SUBSIDIARIES

Company
VNN
2009 2008
—ETAF —ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Non-current assets FREBEE

Unlisted shares, at cost FE_E MR R A A 20 20

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a))  FEURKIE A RIZIA (Fi5E (a) 62,718 62,718

62,738 62,738

Current assets MENEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (b))  FEUTE A FFRIAE (HiE (b)) 65,929 63,436

Note: B3 -

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by (a) FE T P B A 7 2R IB R 2= AN A 7 ST AR RE
the Company to the respective subsidiaries and are unsecured and BARLERERFREE
interest-free.

() The amounts due from subsidaries are unsecured, interest-free and (b) EKHEBARKESEER 2SR
repayable on demand. B ASE- S

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note PiN/N] NI o N e v

32.

Annual Report 2009 —EEhE5% 109




Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

18.

19.

110

INVENTORIES 18. FE&

Group

rEH
2009 2008
SE 1 PR L Y
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Raw materials E R 26,632 25,177
Work in progress fE8m 5,520 9,440
Finished goods el 33,921 35,787
66,073 70,404
Provision for slow-moving inventories BRGTERE (1,661) (1,862)
64,412 68,542

TRADE RECEIVABLES

At 31st December 2009, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables is as follows:

19. BWE 5 RN

8

“EEAFT-A=+T—H " Bk
E DIRAZ BRI DT -

W

\

Group

rEH
2009 2008
ZEThEF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current — 3 months BNER— =1{& A 86,464 95,086
4 — 6 months PO{EA —7~fE A 4,470 12,291
Over 6 months fEsE AN ! 264 246
91,198 107,623
Provisions for returns and doubtful debts — E& & RIEEE (3,612) (1,047)
87,586 106,576

The Group's trade receivables are mainly denominated in
HK$ and USD, and are due within one year from the end of
the reporting period. The carrying value of trade receivables
approximates their fair value due to their short term
maturities.

Perennial International Limited 128 E AR A 7

AEEREBEZERAERZANBTRE
TREE RRBSHERBEF—F
NEIH - BRE SRR REEREE
RAEROREESES -



Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R 5E

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. BIWE ZRM (&)
At 31st December 2009, the ageing analysis of trade RZZEZThF+-_A=+—H EBE@
receivables which were past due but not impaired is as HEWEREEKRE SRR ZRRD
follows: WA
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current — 3 months BN —=1{E A 8,258 21,256
4 — 6 months mEA—7~MEA 261 116
Over 6 months BB 76 A - 167
8,519 21,539
The trade receivables included in the above ageing are A FBRER A R INE B R R T HETTRE
considered not impaired as these relate to a number of AEBRE THEEENLEZ BT
independent customers for whom there is no recent history BEEBE -TEEREBHAEKRE S
of default. All impaired overdue trade receivables have been BE N B B o

provided for.

As of 31st December 2009, trade receivables of R-_ZEETENLF+_A=+—8H"
HK$3,612,000 (2008: HK$1,047,000) were impaired and 3,612,000 t( — & T )\ F:
provided for. The credit quality of trade receivables that 1,047,000 70) 2 FEWR & 5 R E R
are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by BREE - AEBHTERENE
reference to historical information about the counterparties’ SEWENEEEZEERRISYTF
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have MR EHNESEREETE - IRE
significant defaults in the past. R ZEFHEBER A EARWRLEE
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

L i

| 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. BKREZ R (&)

Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as EE SRR EBEEEH T :
follows:
Group
rEH
2009 2008
—sEAE  —FTNA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
At 1st January n—A—H 1,047 1,750
Provisions for returns and doubtful debts — iE& & RER & 3,936 2,419
Net written off and recoverable RSB s S AEIE R
during the year (1,371) (3,122)
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—8H 3,612 1,047
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of reporting R EHERARAGEERRSER £
period is the fair value of the trade receivables mentioned HIEWE ZIRKZ ANE - NERER
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security. B U I R 1EAIRRE o
Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit with EEFEUEEARAR  EFHEF
the exception of new customers, which are cash on delivery ARE RN ERUESMR - —&m
basis. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 90 days T RBRPERERBHE=TENT
of issuance. Longer payment terms might be granted to HAMRK - TREHR T REREE
customers have long-term business relationship with the ERHEBBREZERE  AIZARK
Group and did not have default in payments in the past ZASTRER -
history.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. BEeRESEEY
Group Company
TEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZEEAEF —EEN\F —EEhEF —EENF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T FExT T
Cash at bank #R1T R AT
and in hand Be 29,293 14,307 282 240
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of reporting RIBEHERBHERNEERRZRT
period is cash at bank amounted to HK$29,210,000 (2008: 8% 229,210,000 L (ZFF/)\F :
HK$14,099,000). 14,099,000 7T ) °
Group Company
rEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZEThE 2T N\F —EENF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FHET FHIT
Denominated in: HEER
HK$ BT 13,199 10,565 282 240
RMB (note (a)) AR (Ff3E (a) 3,082 1,359 - -
uUsD =T 10,886 2,299 - -
Others HAfb 2,126 84 - -
29,293 14,307 282 240
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bl #& 3R R M &%

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Included in the balance of the Group are Renminbi bank
balances and cash deposited in the Mainland China of
approximately HK$3,082,000 (2008: HK$1,359,000).
Bank balances and cash denominated in Renminbi are

20. RERRSEEY (R)

REPEAEEEFBEAREZ
ARBROFERRB SR
3,082,000 (=T T )\ F :
1,359,000/ 7T) - AARBEE

BuzRTERAEREIRBRR
o BB B e SN I AR A5

subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the government of Mainland China.

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. BAE

Company
AT
Authorised ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

EERASREEI10EBTZEER
No. of shares HK$’000
RAEE FET
At 1st January 2009 and RZZZNF-—A—AK
at 31st December 2009 RZBENF+ZA=+—H 500,000,000 50,000
At 1st January 2008 and RZZTZENF—HA—BK
at 31st December 2008 RZZZEN\F+=A=+—H 500,000,000 50,000

Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

ERITRAERA
SREHEI10ETZEER
No. of shares HK$’000
RAEE FHET
At 1st January 2009 and RZZZNFE-—A—AK
at 31st December 2009 RZTZENF+ZA=+—H 198,958,000 19,896
At 1st January 2008 and RZEZNF—A—HRK
at 31st December 2008 RZZEZEN\F+=A=+—H 198,958,000 19,896
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

22. RESERVES 22. f#E
Group
r£E
Exchange  Building Capital Total
Share fluctuation revaluation redemption other  Retained
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  earnings Total

EX25 L 52 &%
BiaE e EfRFE WERE AHtREG RERA 2
HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

Téx TEx TEx  TER  TREx  TEx  TEn

As at 1st January 2009 R=ZZnE-A-H 15,885 10,932 12,340 104 39261 177,254 216515
Profit for the year RER RN - - - - - 30,191 30,191
Revaluation surplus BFZEBER

of buildings - - 8,921 - 8,921 - 8,921
Deferred tax charged to NRERERZ

revaluation reserve EEDE - - (980) - (980) - (980)
Exchange difference arising BB H#RE 2 24

from translation of LERZR

financial statements

of subsidiaries - 3,100 - - 3,100 - 3,100
Dividends paid fR& - - - - - (9,950)  (9,950)
At 31st December RZZZNE

2009 +=A=1+-H 15,885 14,032 20,281 104 50,302 197,495 247,797
As at 1st January 2008 RZZZ\E—-F—H 15,885 5,085 8,796 104 29,870 162,920 192,790
Profit for the year REE R - - - - - 222% 22,294
Revaluation surplus BFZEMRBS

of buildings - - 4,843 - 4,843 - 4,843
Deferred taxation charged B Ef:ES

to revaluation reserve BRI - - (1,299) = (1,299) = (1,299)
Exchange difference arising ~ MBA B KRE 2 )i

from translation of LEEZE

financial statements

of subsidiaries - 5,847 - - 5,847 - 5,847
Dividends paid e = = = = = (7,960) (7,960)
At 31st December RIZZN\F

2008 +-A=1-H 15,885 10,932 12,340 104 39,261 177,254 216,515
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

L i

22, RESERVES (CONTINUED) 22. f#E (&)
Company
NG|
Contributed Capital Total
Share surplus  redemption other Retained
premium (note) reserve reserves earnings Total
BABH
RiEE (i) EAWEfRE AHERE RERN fam

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn TiEn

At 1st January 2009 RZZEENE—F—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 27,831 106,368
Profit for the year REZ T - - - - 12,533 12,533
Dividends paid B8 - - - - (9,950) (9,950)
At 31st December RZZETNF
2009 +-A=t—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,637 30,414 108,951
Representing:- HEER:—
2009 final dividend “ETNFRRE
proposed ZRERE 7,960
Others Hith 22,454
Retained eamings as at BE=ZZNE+=A
31st December 2009  =+—HIEZREBEF 30,414
At 1st January 2008 RZZEEN\E—F—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 36,190 114,727
Loss for the year KEERBE - - - - (399) (399)
Dividends paid BRE = = - - (7,960) (7,960)
At 31st December 2008 R=ZT/\E+-H
=t—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 27,831 106,368
Representing:- HEER:—
2008 final dividend “ET\FHRE
proposed ZRERE 5,970
Others Hith 21,861
Retained eamings as at BE=ZZ/\E+=A
31st December 2008  =+—HIEZREBEF 27,831
Note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when the Company ek« RRARZBARBERRRFHITRG A
issued shares in exchange for the shares of subsidiaries being acquired in RBABRARRARRNDER B RZFER
connection with the reorganisation of the Group prior to its listing on The AR EMATEAASEEmMBEZHE R
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and represents the difference AZBRDMEE - HEREARRFEITR
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued and the Pz EEEMBENEARZEEFE
value of net assets of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies ZEE - BBEARE-—NN—FARE
Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is (BAEET) » BARBAIHS IR FIRE ©
distributable to the shareholders. At Group level, the contributed surplus EAEBEZER  SABRRKRDETNHE
is reclassified into its component reserves of the underlying subsidiaries. BEBKEB AR Z FEEARISD o
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

23. BORROWINGS 23. EX
Group
TEH
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank loans REIRITE R - 2,030
Obligations under finance lease contracts  FAREA K#E 2,056 4,283
2,056 6,313
Current B
Current portion of long-term bank loans REIRITER —FAEEE 252 3,148
Current portion of obligations under THESARE—FAERER
finance lease contracts 2,227 2,524
Short-term bank loans REIRITER - 20,000
Trust receipt loans EEUUEE R 24,330 41,425
26,809 67,097
Total borrowings BEX 28,865 73,410
Total borrowings included secured liabilities of BRERBIEBERITEE27,186,0005
HK$27,186,000 (2008: HK$50,871,000), which are secured T(ZZFZN\F: 50,871,000/%87T) bA
by leasehold land and land use rights, buildings and AEBERNTHAER T ERE - Z
investment property of the Group. FRIZEYZEEEM -
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

23. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23. EX (&)
(a)  The maturity of borrowings is as follows: (a) EXWMEEBMT
Group
F5E
Obligations under

Long-term Short-term finance lease
bank loans bank loans Trust receipt loans contracts
RERTER ERRTER ERHEER il ERES

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 ~HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 ~HKS$'000
TEx TEr  TEx  TEr  TExR  TEr TER A1

With 1 year 15/ 252 3,148 - 20000 24330 41425 2,221 2,524
Between 1and2years  122%R - 1,863 - - - - 2,056 2228
Between2andbyears  2Z5%R - 167 - - - - - 205
Wholly repayable SERNZEEE
within 5 years 252 5178 - 20000 24330 41425 4,283 6,807
QOver b years HBB5E - - - - - - - -
Total borrowings BER 252 5,178 - 20000 24330 41425 4283 65807
(b) The average effective interest rates at the end of (b) RIMEHLERBMTHIEREF =
reporting period are as follows: R
2009 2008

—EENF —ZT)N\EF

Long-term bank loans REIRITE R 3.5% 3.67%
Short-term bank loans EEIRITER - 2.39%
Obligations under finance TR & KR IE

lease contracts 5.48% 4.71%
Trust receipt loans EEUBUEE R 1.70% 3.99%
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

23. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23. (&)

(c) The present value of obligations under finance lease (c) REHEBEMRAEWT :
contracts is as follows:

Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EThE ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHESEER
— minimum lease payments: — R HEEFRE ¢
No later than 1 year EBiE 1 2,390 2,808
Later than 1 year and not BB 1 FENEBLF
later than 5 years 2,107 4,498
Later than 5 years B8 5 F - -
4,497 7,306
Future finance charges RERERNRRGEER
on finance leases (214) (499)
Present value of finance AEHENRE
lease liabilities 4,283 6,807
(d)  Borrowings are mainly denominated in Hong Kong (d) EBEREBUBTHEE -
dollars.
(e)  The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate to (e) EFNMEEEHEQARBEMHEEL -

their fair value.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 24. EREZNE - Hitt BN IR
AND ACCRUALS RESTBX
Group Company
rEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —E2ET)\F —EENF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT FHERT FAT

Trade payables (note (a)) JEfES5IE

(Pff3E (a) 31,585 31,382 - -
Other payables HAb R FRIE
and accruals K pEETHE 19,463 15,220 312 360
Total (note (b) and (c)) “axE
(P 5E (b) K2 (c)) 51,048 46,602 312 360
(a) At 31st December 2009, the ageing analysis of trade (a) RZZTEENF+=—A=+—80"
payable is as follows: BB SERZ R AT ¢
Group
rEH
2009 2008
“EThE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Current — 3 months BNEI—=1{& A 31,137 27,320
4 — 6 months mEA—7~MEA 156 3,770
Over 6 months iR 718 A 292 292
31,585 31,382
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 24, ERESFIE - HthENHKIE
AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED) RESTEX (&)
(b) Trade payables, other payables and accruals are (b) MENESHRIE - HAEARER
denominated in the following currencies: FEEtRAS AT EMEE
Group Company
TEH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZEENEF —EEN\F —EEhEF —EENF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT FHERT FHT
United States Dollars %7t 9,238 14,370 - -
Hong Kong Dollars I 25,601 19,1083 312 360
Renminbi AR 15,031 12,033 - -
Other Currencies Hih & 1,178 1,096 - -
51,048 46,602 312 360
()  The carrying values of trade payables, other payables (o) ENESHIE - HitfERRER
and accruals approximate their fair values due to their A 2 EREEEE QR EE
short term maturities RWEEREFH -
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTE&®MIA

Group
rEH
2009 2008
“EThE —EENF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aE BE a8E&
HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTHERT FAT FHT
Forward foreign R ERSNE S A
exchange contracts —HARER
— held for trading - - 776 557
The Group entered into forward foreign exchange contracts SEEIRITELRHINES L) ATERE
with banks to sell and buy United States dollars in exchange HMERELREAEZTUNEL AR
for Renminbi at predetermined rates, settled on a monthly ¥ RABEERRERSE - RZF
basis for its operating use. There is no derivative financial TNETZA=T—RELRETES
instruments at 31st December 2009. The notional amount MITE - R=ZTENF+ZA=1+—
of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract as at HAREREINES 49 521,784,000
31st December 2008 was HK$21,784,000 and was expired BITWER T NFMAER °
in April 2009.
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts were RMEPLERE - REIEGHR R
determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the end BEEADRERPIERTATE -

of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZEAF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26. FEBEEREXRKT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) EEBEELEMNRESZHIER
generated from operations
2009 2008
—EERF ZTTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Profit before taxation BREE A& A 35,314 24,960
Interest income FBUA (24) (141)
Bank loan interests RITERFE 1,305 4,271
Interest element of MHEEE L 2 FEHH
finance lease contracts 284 453
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERREFEE
plant and equipment 42 184
Revaluation surplus on REYXESHRAR
investment property (400) -
Reversal of impairment provision ME - HE REEE 2 R
on property, plant and equipment (914) -
Amortisation of leasehold land and BEIEAE S 1 o - (b AR
land use rights 922 900
Depreciation of owned property, BEWE  BEMIEZINE
plant and equipment 8,187 7,200
Depreciation of property, RIS A 2%
plant and equipment held BB RBE2TE
under finance lease contracts 1,153 1,455
Net loss on derivative TTESRT EFER
financial instruments 219 6
Operating profit before EEESEEN 2R
working capital changes 46,088 39,288
Decrease in inventories HFERD 4,130 12,442
Decrease in trade receivables, FENE SRR - AR -
other receivables, deposits 21 RIBN FIER
and prepayments 21,025 12,350
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, [EZHFE « HtbEMNFIER
other payables and accruals FEETRAS G, CRi ) 4,446 (21,386)
Net cash generated from operations ~ &ZEELHFIRE 75,689 42,694
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —EZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26. EBEEREXRKT (E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during (b) FARMEZBDN
the year

Obligations under

Long-term Short-term Trust receipt finance lease
bank loans bank loans loans contracts
RERTER RERTER ERREER HEAHRE

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Z2E0E CTENE CERAE CEENF CEBAE CEINE CREnE CTRNE
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000

T TR Tén  TEL  TEx  TEr Tz TEn

At 1st January ®-FA—H 5,178 5,101 20,000 - 41,425 91,361 6,807 9,387
Addition of loans MEER - 3,000 - 20000 138545 259275 - -
Repayment of loans BRER (4926)  (2923)  (20,000) - (155,640)  (309,211) - -
Repayment of capital [EREEEY

element of finance LERHR

lease contracts - - - - - - (2,524) (2,580)
At 31st December R+=A=t-H 252 5178 - 20,000 24,330 41,425 4,283 6,807
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 27. BEBALTRS
There was no related party transaction made during the year. AEEWEFBBALRS -
The Group entered into the following significant transactions AEBR-_ZEZENEFEF+=-A=+—H
in the ordinary course of business with a related party, IEFEREER AT - BN E T
BMTESEHOER AR, during the year ended 31st HOERAR - EEEEBPHETT
December 2008: HNEARS
2009 2008
—genE  —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Sale of goods HE - 79
These transactions were entered into on normal commercial Al BAES A2 5 TR — MR SR AR ©
terms.
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28. COMMITMENTS 28.

126

(@)

(b)

(c)

Capital commitment
At 31st December 2009, the Group had the following
capital commitment for leasehold improvements and

plant and machinery:

(a) EAER
R=FBAFT=A=+—8
ARSI T A RS R 35
ZEAESE -

2009 2008

“ETAE —ZTT)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Contracted but not provided for EETAV B R 670 977

Commitments under operating leases

At 31st December 2009, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

(b) REHEERE
R-ZZZNF+_A=+—8 "
REERBER TIEEANER 2
A BEEEHERBE 2 RIE
e

Land and buildings

TR iEF
2009 2008
ZEEhF ZZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Not later than one year —FA 17 -
Later than one year and —FRETZRAF
not later than five years - =
17 -
The Company did not have significant commitments at () R=ZZEENAEK=ZZENF+=A
31st December 2009 and 2008. =+—HB ' ARFREEERELR
HHE o
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29. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND PLEDGE 29. RITHE

At 31st December 2009, the Group's banking facilities RZZEZNF+=_A=+—80 ' K&&
amounting to approximately HK$205,535,000 (2008: #9205,535,000% T( = ZF =T N\ F
HK$230,764,000) were secured by the following:- +=—A=+—H : 230,764,000/ 7t )

ZIRITRE A TSI B (R

(a) legal charges over certain leasehold land, land use @ AEEBENUNEEFEASHX
rights, buildings and investment property of the Group 39,784,000 (=TT )\ F
with a total net book value of HK$39,784,000 (2008: +=A=+—H : 39,335,000
HK$39,335,000); L) ZETHEELH - Liv(FER
EREF RIEEMERIEZEE
R
(b) a deed of guarantee executed by the Company (b) ARBEEBEZ —MNERITESHL
amounting to HK$121,000,000 (2008: 121,000,000 T (=T )\F :
HK$181,000,000). 181,000,000757T) °
30. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 30. RAER AT
The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings ARREEZSRAERBEXHST
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, it A3 Z Spector Holdings Limited J3
as being the ultimate holding company. SIRERRAF] ©

31. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31. BBHR A

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the K EMBBRREN =T —ZTF=A
Board of Directors on 10th March 2010. TRESESHE -
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32. SUBSIDIARIES 32. fE AT
At 31st December 2009, the Company held major RZZEZNF+_A=+—8 A2
investments or capital in the following subsidiaries: AR T EZMBRTFERD ¢
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£ /RS BRRA/EMER TTER &
2009 2008
“EENE  ZETE)E
Shares held directly
EREERS
Perennial Holdings British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding 100% 100%
Global Limited ABRIHS LER =T REER

Shares held indirectly

BEERG
Ever Peak Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
Limited Bk ERR3ET BENE
MAERERAA
Glitter Wire & Cable Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Inactive 100% 100%
Company Limited Bk E@R500%T EAE)
REEREHEERAA Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
ERZRELR
2,000,000 7
New Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
Cable Limited &b L@k 1,000%T FEER
MRERERAA Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERZEETRA
10,000,000/ 7
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 32. EBERAR (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£R /RS BRIRE/ERER TEEK i
2009 2008
ZEENE  —TI)E
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERG ()
Perennial Cable Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Inactive 100% 100%
Harness Limited &b L3 10,0008 )
BERIARAR
a Perennial Cable (H.K) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
EHER(EE) ERAF BA &R 2,000,000757 of electric cables, wires,
wire harness and accessories
HERHESR 8K
BAERREM
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment and property holding, 100% 100%
EHEEERAT EERUAS EER1ET trading of electric cable, wires,
wire hamess and accessories
RERSEYR EEER.
B HERRREM
b Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric cables, 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly AR HK$65,000,000 wires and wire harness
owned foreign enterprise) AR HEER BERAGER
BEER(ANERAT 65,000,000 87
(REERBIHERE)
a Perennial Plastics Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Manufacturing and sale of plastic 100% 100%
(HK) Limited Bk LRk2AT resing and compounds
B2 (B4 ERAA HERHEER AR AN
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 32. EBERR (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£ /R BRRE/ERER TEXH R
2009 2008
ZEENE  —TE)E
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERG ()
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
RERLES EHt50,000ET RERR
New Technology Cable United Kingdom Ordinary GBP1 License holding 100% 100%
(UK) Limited #E LRk 2 AR
New Technology Cable Singapore Ordinary SG$2 License holding 100% 100%
Pte. Limited EI EEkoIET FEER
Shinka K.X. Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000 License holding 100% 100%
BA Ei#1710,0000087 FEHER
Perennial USA Inc. USA Ordinary USD0.5 Trading of electric cables, wires, 100% 100%
*H EER0SET wire harness and accessories
BEER B HoRRREHK
Shenzhen Welldone Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric cables, wires, 100% 100%
Trading Co., Limited ey HKD$1,000,,000 wire harness and accessories
(wholly owned AR BEER B HoRRREHK
foreign enterprise) 1,000,000 ¢
MIEEEE HERAA
(RERAGIMER)
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 32. B A (&)

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability LB AR ABRATEE °

company.

Save as noted below, the above companies operate BRUA TN BRSO - Bt A | 2 8 38 Hh Bh

principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places of EEABBMIEELEREM Bt

incorporation/establishment, except for: 2

s Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited, and Perennial Plastics 2 BEELR (BH) BRARREH
(H.K.) Limited of which manufacturing activities are BR(ESD) ARAR 2 WEFER
conducted by their appointed sub-contractors in ThiE R E AR AMBRY IR
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China; and RN EBEET &

o Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited and Shenzhen b ERELZ ORI BRA T RIRY
Welldone Trading Co., Limited in Shenzhen, the BEREBSERATNRPEAR
People’s Republic of China. HABRY R o
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EEAE  ZEENF ZTTLFE CZTTRFE ZTTHF
Operating results (HK$'000) RELE(TER)
Revenue W 411,192 507,628 470,496 439,352 375,383
Operating profit fmesfl 36,903 29,684 32,546 36,271 30,313
Profit for the year AEE&F 30,191 22,294 24,398 29,460 25,408
Financial position (HK$'000) BHEMRR (FER)
Net current assets FRBERE 103,252 78,663 63,984 69,059 61,150
Shareholders’ funds BRES 267,693 236,411 212,686 187,342 165,211
Per share data (HK$Cent) BREIE (B4
Earnings per share - basic BREN-EXREE
and diluted 15.2 1.2 12.3 14.8 12.8
Dividend per share (interim BRRE(PEHE
and final dividend) RERE) 6 5 4 4 4
Key Statistics TEHE
Inventory turnover (days) FEAE(X2) 98 72 89 91 94
Debtors’ turnover (days) FEARER A (K8 78 77 90 91 77
Creditors’ turnover (days) ERRES (K8) 49 34 58 52 43
Acid-test ratio (%) RENLL K (%) 147.8% 108.7% 89.7% 96.7% 98.5%
Working capital (%) BEED (%) 227.0% 168.0% 138.7% 151.6% 157.2%
Total liabilities/total capital war/ BER
employed (%) B (%) 34.0% 54.0% 84.8% 79.9% 70.0%
Return on capital employed ERER R =
(operating profit/shareholders’  (&%%#,/ IRE
funds) (%) EE) (%) 13.8% 12.6% 15.3% 19.4% 18.3%
Return on average total assets ~ F¥@EERIE
(profit after taxation/average (BRFiRER /T
total assets) (%) BEE) (%) 8.4% 5.9% 6.7% 9.5% 9.6%
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